
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Agenda - Regular Meeting  
City Hall Annex, 205 4th Street 

January 21, 2020 
 
Call to Order 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Roll Call 
  
Oath of Office 
 
1. Oath of Office for Police Chief Steve Taylor 
  
Approval of Minutes 
 
2. Draft City Council Minutes- January 6, 2020 
3. DRAFT City Council Minutes Special PS-January 9, 2020 
  
Items from the Audience 
Scheduled 
 
Unscheduled (20 Minutes) 
Audience members may address the Council on any issue other than those scheduled 
for a public hearing or those on which the public hearing has been closed.  Prior to 
commenting please state your name, address, and topic.  Please keep comments under 
4 minutes. 
  
Consent Agenda 
 
4. Approval of Payroll and Claims 

5. Amending Addendum K of the 2020 Budget 
6. Resolution No. 1017 - Request to Cancel Warrant #74403 

  
Public Hearing 
 
  
  

Mayor 
Scott Korthuis 

 
Council Members 

Gary Bode 
Ron De Valois 
Gerald Kuiken 
Nick H. Laninga 
Brent Lenssen 
Kyle Strengholt 
Mark Wohlrab 

CITY OF LYNDEN 
1



 
 300 4th Street, Lynden, WA 98264 

www.lyndenwa.org 

 

Unfinished Business 
 
7. Ordinance No. 1602 – Setting the Final Property Tax for 2020 
  
New Business 
 
  
Other Business 
 
8. Quarterly Work Plan Update 

9. Draft Public Works Committee Minutes January 8, 2020 
10. Outlook Calendar 
  
Executive Session 
 
  
Adjournment 
  

2



 

 

   EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
 

Meeting Date: January 21, 2020 
Name of Agenda Item: Oath of Office for Police Chief Steve Taylor 
Section of Agenda: Oath of Office 
Department: Police 
Council Committee Review: Legal Review: 
☐ Community Development          ☐ Public Safety ☐ Yes - Reviewed 
☐ Finance ☐ Public Works ☐ No - Not Reviewed 
☐ Parks    ☐ Other: _____________ ☒ Review Not Required 
Attachments: 
Oath of Office - Chief Taylor 

Summary Statement: 
Oath of Office ceremony for Police Chief Steve Taylor 

Recommended Action: 
Mayor Korthuis to swear in Steve Taylor as the new Police Chief. 

 

CITY OF LYNDEN 

3



 

 203 19th Street, Lynden, WA 98264 
 www.lyndenwa.org  

POLICE DEPARTMENT 
Office of the Chief of Police 
(360) 354 - 2828 
 

CITY OF LYNDEN 

 
 
 
 
 

Police Chief Oath of Office 
 

I __________________   do solemnly swear to perform my 

duties as Police Chief for the City of Lynden to the best of my ability; 

to serve my officers with respect and dignity; to serve the citizens 

of the City of Lynden with compassion, courage and integrity; and 

to uphold the laws and constitutions of the United States of 

America, the State of Washington, and the City of Lynden; so help 

me God. 
 

 

 

 
          
Police Chief Signature    Date  
 
 
 
 
          
Mayor Signature     Date 
 

4



 

 

   EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

 

Meeting Date: January 21, 2020 

Name of Agenda Item: Draft Council Minutes- Regular Meeting 

Section of Agenda: Approval of Minutes 

Department: Administration 

Council Committee Review: Legal Review: 

☐ Community Development          ☐ Public Safety ☒ Yes - Reviewed 

☐ Finance ☐ Public Works ☐ No - Not Reviewed 

☐ Parks    ☐ Other: N/A ☐ Review Not Required 

Attachments: 

Draft Council Minutes- Regular Meeting 

Summary Statement: 

Draft Council Minutes- Regular Meeting 

Recommended Action: 

For Council review. 

 

CITY OF LYNDEN 

5



 
 

 

 
 300 4th Street, Lynden, WA 98264  
 www.lyndenwa.org  Page 1 of 6 
 

CITY OF LYNDEN 
CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 
 

 
 

January 6, 2020 
 
1.  CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Korthuis called to order the January 6, 2020 regular session of the Lynden City Council at 7:00 
p.m. at the Lynden City Hall Annex. 
 
 

 ROLL CALL              
 
Members present:  Mayor Scott Korthuis and Councilors Gary Bode, Ron De Valois, Jerry Kuiken, 
Brent Lenssen, Nick Laninga, Kyle Strengholt, and Mark Wohlrab. 
 
Members absent: None 
 
Staff present:  Fire Chief Billmire, Parks Director Vern Meenderinck, Planning Director Heidi Gudde, 
Acting Police Chief Russ Martin, Public Works Director Steve Banham, City Clerk Pam Brown, City 
Administrator Mike Martin, and City Attorney Bob Carmichael. 
 
OATH OF OFFICE  
 
Prior to commencing the duties of  council office, recently, re-elected council members Gary Bode, Ron  
De Valois, Jerry Kuiken and Brent Lenssen were administered their Oath of Office by Mayor Korthuis. 
Term of office for each council member expires December 31, 2023.  
 
Mayor Korthuis also administered the Oath of Office to Assistant Fire Chief Tom Hatley.  Council and 
staff extended their well wishes for AC Hatley’s success with the city of Lynden.   
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Councilor Wohlrab moved and Councilor De Valois seconded to approve the regular council 
minutes of December 16, 2019. Motion approved on a 7-0 vote.    
 
 
ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE 
 
Scheduled: None 
 
Unscheduled: 
 

Cynthia Ripke-Kutsagoitz, 7062 Guider Meridian, #30, Lynden 
Cynthia addressed council and expressed her gratitude to council. She is in favor of the direction that 
council takes when considering city business. 
 

6



 
 

 

 
 300 4th Street, Lynden, WA 98264  
 www.lyndenwa.org  Page 2 of 6 
 

CITY OF LYNDEN 
CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 
 

 
 

  
 
2.  CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Approval of Payroll Disbursed – December 16-31, 2019 
Paychex EFT .................................................................................................................. $331,264.91 
City of Lynden EFT ........................................................................................................... $65,505.42 
Warrant Liability ................................................................................................................ $65,415.61 

Subtotal $453,185.94 
Paychex EFT Liability $6,706.11 
Total EFT & Other Liabilities $459,892.05 
 
 
Approval of Claims –January 10, 2020 
For 2019 open period (201913) checks dated 12/21/2019 
 

Manual Warrants No. 74446 through 74449  $20,207.16 

EFT Payment Pre-Pays          $20,736.54 

  Sub Total Pre-Pays $44,943.70 

 

Voucher Warrants No. 74453 through 74488        $88,416.06 

EFT Payments   $0.00 

  Sub Total $88,416.06 

  Total Accts. Payable $133,359.76 

 
Appoint Mayor Korthuis to the 2020 Whatcom Transportation Authority Board & Appoint Councilor Gary 
Bode to act as alternate 
 
Reappointment of Park and Trail Advisory Committee Members 
Three members of the Park and Trail advisory committee has completed their terms with the committee 
at the end of 2019. Tad Vander Griend, Jeff Davis, and Colby Weg have all agreed to serve an 
additional term on the committee.  
 
Both the Advisory committee and the Parks Committee desire to have Tad, Jeff, and Colby reappointed 
to the committee for an additional 3-year term. Terms will be from January 1, 2020 through December 
31, 2022. 
 
Reappointment of Berthusen Advisory Committee Members 
One member, Dave Timmer,  of the Berthusen advisory Committee completed his term with the 
committee at the end of 2019. Mr. Timmer has agreed to serve an additional term on the committee. 
Both the Advisory Committee and the Parks Committee desire to have Dave reappointed for an 
additional 3-year term.  The term is  January 1, 2020 through  December 31, 2022 
 
Mayor Korthuis thanked each of the committee members for their service to the community. 
 

7



 
 

 

 
 300 4th Street, Lynden, WA 98264  
 www.lyndenwa.org  Page 3 of 6 
 

CITY OF LYNDEN 
CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 
 

 
 

Remand Order for PRD Amendment 19-01 – RB Development (Parkview Apartments) 
Planned Residential Development (PRD) Amendment 19-01 proposes a revision to the RB Development 
PRD Development Agreement. The amendment seeks to utilize residential units originally planned for 
within the PRD by modifying the perimeter setback associated with Parkview Apartments, reestablishing 
a height limitation of 45 feet, and removing outdoor storage requirements for the proposed units. If the 
amendment is permitted, the applicant proposes the construction of senior apartments which would 
complement the surrounding property uses.  
 
The application went to a public hearing before the Planning Commission on October 10th. The hearing 
demonstrated that there was consistent support for senior housing opportunities. However, concerns 
related to scale of the building and traffic impacts ultimately resulted in a recommendation for denial.  
 
Given the support for the housing type, staff proposed that the City Council consider conditions of 
approval which would reduce the scale and impacts of the project. The proposed conditions are meant 
to address the concerns of the Planning Commission while providing a path forward for additional senior 
housing within the City of Lynden.  
 
On December 2, 2019 the City Council reviewed the applicant’s request and the staff recommendation 
and determined that the application, and proposed conditions, should return to the Planning Commission 
for review. Subsequently, the attached Order of Remand has been created which outlines the proposal 
and the requested remand to the Planning Commission. Per code, remand orders must include a 
timeframe. In this case the Planning Commission shall pass a resolution with new findings by March 31, 
2020. 
 

Councilor Bode moved and Councilor De Valois seconded to approve the Consent Agenda. 
Motion approved on a 7-0 vote. 
 
 
3.  PUBLIC HEARING  
 
Resolution No. 1015- Stormwater Comprehensive Plan 
The City of Lynden has developed an updated Comprehensive Stormwater Plan referenced in the 
City’s overall Comprehensive Plan (Chapter 5, Section 5.2.3), as required under the State’s Growth 
Management Act. Additionally, this plan was revised to meet the terms of the City’s Western 
Washington Phase II National Pollutant Discharge Elimination (NPDES) Permit.  
 
The Comprehensive Stormwater Management Plan offers guidance on ways to minimize the adverse 
effects of stormwater runoff to receiving water bodies and identifies existing stormwater issues within 
the system. The Plan provides City staff and policy makers with the background and necessary 
information to develop and manage the storm drainage system in a cost-effective manner that complies 
with regulatory stipulations. The objectives are to understand the current conveyance and water quality 
treatment issues in order to position the City for effective planning of future improvements. As such, this 
plan functions as a long-term planning tool that will ready the City for the anticipated growth in 
population over a 20-year horizon. The Plan outlines methods for meeting regulatory requirements and 

8



 
 

 

 
 300 4th Street, Lynden, WA 98264  
 www.lyndenwa.org  Page 4 of 6 
 

CITY OF LYNDEN 
CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 
 

 
 

developing policies and procedures; and defines capital facilities projects for the Stormwater Utility. The 
full document is available upon request and will be posted to the City’s website. 
 
At their December 16th meeting, City Council concurred to set a public hearing date of January 6, 2020 
to hear comments on the City’s Stormwater Comprehensive Plan. Upon hearing comments, the Council 
may reject the Plan or approve the Plan through Resolution No. 1015. 
 
Mayor Korthuis opened the Public Hearing at 7:13 p.m.  
There were no comments.   
Mayor Korthuis closed the Public Hearing at 7:13 p.m. 
 
Councilor Bode moved and Councilor De Valois  seconded to approve the city’s Stormwater 
Comprehensive Plan through Resolution No. 1015 and authorize the Mayor’s signature on the 
document. Motion approved on a 7-0 vote. 
 
Ordinance No. 1599-Comcast Franchise Agreement 
The City’s Franchise Agreement with Comcast Cable Communications Management LLC must be 
updated. The last agreement adopted by Ordinance 1165 in 2003 expired in 2013. The franchise fee 
remains at 5% per federal law (47 U.S.C. 542(a) and (b)).  
 
Per RCW 35A.47.040, No granting of any franchise in a code city for any purpose shall be adopted or 
passed by the city's legislative body on the day of its introduction nor for five days thereafter.  
 
At their December 16th meeting, City Council concurred to set a public hearing date of January 6, 2020 
to hear comments on the City’s Comcast Franchise Agreement. Upon hearing comments, the Council 
may reject the Franchise Agreement or approve the Franchise Agreement through Ordinance No. 
1599. 
 
Mayor Korthuis opened the Public Hearing at 7:14 p.m.  
 
Vincent Buys, Comcast Representation, 1952 Blue Stem, Lynden spoke in favor of the agreement and 
asked for council support. 
 
Gary Vis, Director Lynden Chamber of Commerce, 518 Front Street, Lynden asked about the removal 
of Comcast poles in Judson Alley.  
 
Mayor Korthuis closed the Public Hearing at 7:18 p.m. 
 
Councilor Bode moved and Councilor  Kuiken seconded to approve the City’s Franchise 
Agreement with Comcast through Ordinance No. 1599 and authorize the Mayor’s signature on 
the document. Motion approved on a 7-0 vote. 
 
 
 
 

9



 
 

 

 
 300 4th Street, Lynden, WA 98264  
 www.lyndenwa.org  Page 5 of 6 
 

CITY OF LYNDEN 
CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 
 

 
 

4.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS - None 
 
 
5.  NEW BUSINESS 
 
Proposal to Build a BMX Pump Track at Bender Fields 
Kevin Rus, 931 E. Front Street, Lynden, and his associates are proposing to build a BMX Pump Track at 
Bender Fields. They are currently in the process of fund raising to pay for the installation of the park. 
They are working with a national company that builds pump tracks nationwide and are considering using 
the same plans as those used for Pinto Lake, located in California.  
 
Mr. Rus provided a 10-minute presentation to Council that provided additional information about what 
pump tracks are, costs associated with building and maintaining the track and the plans they have for 
fundraising efforts.    
 
Councilor De Valois moved and Councilor Bode seconded to approve the construction of a BMX 
Pump Track at Bender Fields if the committee can raise the needed funds for construction.  
Motion approved on a 7-0 vote.  
 
 
Confirmation of Appointment to Planning Commission – Nikki Turner 
The Mayor has appointed a new member, Nikki Turner, to fill a vacancy on the Planning Commission. 
This appointment is being brought forward to the City Council meeting for confirmation. Nikki will be filling 
the seat vacated by Brett Kok. Brett completed his term on the Planning Commission in December of 
2019.  
 
For those who may not be aware, the Planning Commission consists of seven members. Commission 
members are selected without respect to political affiliations and serve without compensation. At the time 
of appointment and throughout their term of office, the primary residence of each member of the Planning 
Commission must be within the city limits of Lynden. The term of office for each member is four years.  
 
Nikki Turner has volunteered for this position after a recent run for a City Council position. She anticipates 
joining the Planning Commission for their first meeting in 2020 which is scheduled to occur on January 
9th. The Mayor and staff are looking forward to adding her to the Planning Commission and request the 
City Council confirm her appointment. 
 
Councilor Laninga moved and Councilor Wohlrab seconded to confirm the appointment of Nikki 
Turner to the Lynden Planning Commission for a term beginning January 2020 and expiring 
December 2023. Motion approved on a 7-0 vote 
 
 
Re-appointment to Planning Commission – Blair Scott 
Blair Scott has agreed to serve an additional term on the City’s Planning Commission. This reappointment 
is being brought forward to the City Council meeting for confirmation.  
 

10



 
 

 

 
 300 4th Street, Lynden, WA 98264  
 www.lyndenwa.org  Page 6 of 6 
 

CITY OF LYNDEN 
CITY COUNCIL 
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
The Mayor and staff are thankful to Blair for his continued service on the Planning Commission and 
request that the City Council confirm his appointment. 
 
Councilor De Valois moved and Councilor Strengholt seconded to confirm the reappointment of 
Blair Scott to the Lynden Planning Commission for a term beginning January 2020 and expiring 
December 2023. Motion approved on a 7-0 vote 
 
 
6.  OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Mayor Korthuis asked council members to rank their preferences concerning council 
assignments for 2020 and 20201. He asked that they rank those preferences with  1 being the 
most preferred, 2 being the next best and 3 being the least preferred.  Mayor Korthuis will make 
assignments base on the most senior council member’s first preference then so on and so on 
until all the committee positions have been filled. Councilor Kuiken has volunteered to serve on 
three committees. The mayor asked that council members give him their committee choices by 
the end of next week. 
 
 Acting Chief Russ Martin gave each council member a coin commemorating Chief Michael Knapp’s 
service to the City of Lynden.  The coin was designed by police officer Van Loo and is meant to honor 
and remember the distinct character of Chief Knapp.  
 

 
7.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Council did not have an executive session.  
 
 

8.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
The January 6, 2020 regular session of the Lynden City Council adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
            
Pamela D. Brown, MMC    Scott Korthuis 
City Clerk     Mayor 

11



 

 

   EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
 

Meeting Date: January 21, 2020 
Name of Agenda Item: Special City Council Meeting Minutes January 9, 2020-Draft 
Section of Agenda: Approval of Minutes 
Department: Police Department 
Council Committee Review: Legal Review: 
☐ Community Development          ☒ Public Safety ☐ Yes - Reviewed 
☐ Finance ☐ Public Works ☐ No - Not Reviewed 
☐ Parks    ☐ Other: _____________ ☒ Review Not Required 
Attachments: 
Special City Council Meeting Minutes January 9, 2020-Draft 

Summary Statement: 
 

Recommended Action: 
For Council Review 

 

CITY OF LYNDEN 

12



 

 203 19th Street, Lynden, WA 98264 
 www.lyndenwa.org  Page 1 of 2 

POLICE DEPARTMENT 
Office of the Chief of Police 
(360) 354 - 2828 
 

CITY OF LYNDEN 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING 

4:00 PM January 9, 2020 
Police Department Training Room 

 
COMMITTEE 
 

1. ROLL CALL: 
Members present: Mayor Scott Korthuis and Councilors Brent Lenssen, Gary 
Bode, Mark Wohlrab and Gerald Kuiken 
 
Staff present: Chief Mark Billmire, Assistant Chief Tom Hatley, Lieutenant 
Jeremy Bos, Lieutenant Russ Martin, City Administrator Mike Martin, Support 
Services Manager Holly Vega 
 

2. ACTION ITEMS: 
A. Approve minutes from December 2, 2019 meeting. 

The December 2, 2019 Public Safety meeting minutes were approved. 
 

3. INFORMATION ITEMS: 
A. Obsolete Code Revisions 

Councilor Lenssen provided a proposed ordinance to revise several outdated 
City ordinances, to include extending the hours of alcohol sales to 2:00 a.m., 
eliminating or revising dance permits and restrictions, as well as horse taxis. 
This will be discussed further in the Community Development Committee.  
 

B. Lynden WATCH update 
Councilor Wohlrab gave an update on the Lynden WATCH program, noting 
an increase in followers of 30%, totaling 2600 people. 

 
FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 

1. ACTION ITEMS: None 
 

2. INFORMATION ITEMS:  
A. Monthly report for November and December 

Chief Billmire presented the November and December monthly reports, 
including a new statistic of most common addresses responded to. 
 

B. New ambulance – will be at PD for inspection 
The new ambulance was at the PD briefly, but then called out to respond to a 
vehicle collision. 

13



 

 203 19th Street, Lynden, WA 98264 
 www.lyndenwa.org  Page 2 of 2 

C. WC Narcan Leave Behind program 
Whatcom County has launched a Narcan Leave Behind program, funded by 
an EMS levy, in which EMS personnel can offer a free Narcan kit at the 
response scene where a patient was revived from an overdose.  
 

D. Career FF recruitment process 
The City is currently advertising for full-time career Firefighers, closing at the 
end of January. 

 
E. Fire Station renovation 

Chief Billmire provided a feasibility study / pre-design draft on the Fire Station 
renovation. Mayor Korthuis advises to begin the design process and be 
prepared to start the project when the funding is available. A request for 
proposals will be sent out, anticipating construction in the spring of 2021. 
 

POLICE DEPARTMENT 
 

1. ACTION ITEMS: None 
 

2. INFORMATION ITEMS: 
A. Staffing update 

Chief Steve Taylor starts on January 16, 2020 and will be sworn in at the next 
Council meeting. Two conditional offers have been made to lateral 
candidates, scheduled to start on February 1, 2020 and March 1, 2020. 
These hires will fill the current vacancy, and the 17th officer position. 
 

B. Armory update 
The armory is in the process of being remodeled, thanks to Public Works 
crew doing phenomenal work. It will be dedicated to Chief Knapp, with 
commemorative wall graphics in his honor.  
 

C. Monthly report 
Lieutenant Martin overviewed the monthly report, noting an increase in DUIs 
due to the holidays, and vehicle prowls are back up, again all unlocked 
vehicles.  

  
 Meeting adjourned at 5:00 p.m. 

 
Next Meeting Date: February 6, 2020 

 
 
 
 
              
Holly Vega, Police Support Svc Mgr  Scott Korthuis, Mayor 

14



 

 

   EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

 

Meeting Date: January 21, 2020 

Name of Agenda Item: Approval of Payroll and Claims 

Section of Agenda: Consent 

Department: Finance 

Council Committee Review: Legal Review: 

☐ Community Development          ☐ Public Safety ☐ Yes - Reviewed 

☒ Finance ☐ Public Works ☐ No - Not Reviewed 

☐ Parks    ☐ Other: __________ ☒ Review Not Required 

Attachments: 

None 

Summary Statement: 

Approval of Payroll and Claims 

Recommended Action: 

Approval of Payroll and Claims 

 

CITY OF LYNDEN 

15



 

 

   EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

 

Meeting Date: January 21, 2020 
Name of Agenda Item: Amending Addendum K of the 2020 Budget 
Section of Agenda: Consent 
Department: Finance 
Council Committee Review: Legal Review: 

☐ Community Development          ☐ Public Safety ☐ Yes - Reviewed 

☒ Finance ☐ Public Works ☐ No - Not Reviewed 

☐ Parks    ☐ Other: _____________ ☒ Review Not Required 
Attachments: 

None 

Summary Statement: 

 
On December 2, 2019 the City Council approved the 2020 Annual Budget complete with addendums. 
 
Addendum K to the 2020 Budget states the salary schedule and cost of living allowances for the salaried non-
represented positions. A correction to that addendum has been requested changing the Fire Chiefs cost of 
living allowance from the original 3.25% to 4% to match the union increase given to the rank and file 
firefighters. 
 
The Finance Committee reviewed this issue at their committee meeting on January 21, 2020.  

 
Recommended Action: 

Approve the change amending addendum K of the 2020 Budget.   

 

CITY OF LYNDEN 

16



 

 

   EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

 

Meeting Date: January 21,2020 
Name of Agenda Item: Resolution No. 1017 - Request to Cancel Warrant #74403 
Section of Agenda: Consent 
Department: Finance 
Council Committee Review: Legal Review: 

☐ Community Development          ☐ Public Safety ☐ Yes - Reviewed 

☒ Finance ☐ Public Works ☐ No - Not Reviewed 

☐ Parks    ☐ Other: _____________ ☒ Review Not Required 
Attachments: 

Resolution No. 1017 
Copy of Warrant No. 74403; supporting cancellation memos. 
 
Summary Statement: 

RCW 39.56.040 states that any registered or interest bearing warrants of any municipal corporation not 
presented within one year of the date of their call, or other warrants not presented within one year of their 
issue, shall be canceled by passage of a resolution of the governing body of the municipal corporation, and upon 
notice of the passage of such resolution the auditor of the municipal corporation and the treasurer of the 
municipal corporation shall transfer all records of such warrants so as to leave the funds as is such warrants 
had never been issued; and 
 
Warrant No. 74403 has not and will not be presented for payment and should be canceled. 
 
Recommended Action: 

The City Council give consent approval of Resolution No. 1017 and authorize the Mayor’s signature. 

 

CITY OF LYNDEN 

17



    Resolution No. 1017 
   Page 1 of 1 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 1017 

 
A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY OF LYNDEN, WASHINGTON  

REQUESTING THE CANCELLATION  
OF WARRANT NO. 74403 

 
 
WHEREAS, RCW 39.56.040 states that any registered or interest bearing warrants of any municipal 
corporation not presented within one year of the date of their call, or other warrants not presented within 
one year of their issue, shall be canceled by passage of a resolution of the governing body of the 
municipal corporation, and upon notice of the passage of such resolution the auditor of the municipal 
corporation and the treasurer of the municipal corporation shall transfer all records of such warrants so 
as to leave the funds as is such warrants had never been issued; and 
 
WHEREAS, it has been brought to the attention of the City Council that Warrant No. 74403 has not and 
will not be presented for payment; and 
 
WHEREAS, documentation has been provided that the payment due was paid on an invoice; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY the City Council of the City of Lynden as follows: 
 
 
Section A: That Warrant No. 74403, in the amount of $1255.27, issued December 18, 2019 from  
Fund 401 be canceled.  
 
Section B: If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this resolution is for any reason 
held to be invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions 
of this resolution. The Council hereby declares that it would have passed this code and each section, 
subsection, sentence, clause and phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact than any one or more 
sections, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases has been declared invalid or unconstitutional, and 
if, for any reason, this resolution should be declared invalid or unconstitutional, then the original 
ordinance or ordinances shall be in full force and effect. 
 

Section C: This resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage by the Council 

and after its approval by the Mayor, if approved, otherwise, as provided by law and five (5) days after 
the date of its publication. 

  
PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL BY AN AFFIRMATIVE VOTE, ____ IN FAVOR ____ AGAINST, AND 
SIGNED BY THE MAYOR THIS ____ DAY OF JANUARY, 2020.                               
                                                                                              
       
                                                                                          _________________________ 
                                                                                          MAYOR 
ATTEST:  
 
____________________________  
CITY CLERK                                            
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
____________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY  

18



FINANCE DEPARTMENT
360-354-2829

CITY OF LYNDEN

Memo
To: Anthony Burrows cc: Linde Schreifels

From: Linda Handy

Re:

January 15, 2020

VOID Claims Warrant #74403

Date:

• TO BE VOIDED WITH CONSENT OF CITY COUNCIL

Please void warrant #74403 payable to Enviro-Care, Co. (v# 4532) dated 12/18/19 in the amount of
$1,255.27. This warrant included an invoice payable to Enviro-Clean Equipment, Inc. (v# 3399) in
error. Enviro-Care returned the warrant to be voided and corrected.

Pleasevoid the warrant and transaction #'s 29187697 and 29187671.

The warrant is being held in the Finance safe until the void request has gone through city council &
the process is complete.

Upon approval, warrants will be reissued to Enviro-Care and Enviro-Clean in the 1/22/20 AP check
run. (checks dated 12/31/19 for period 13 2019)

Thank you,

LH

300 4th Street, Lynden, WA 98264
www.lyndenwa.org

19



CITY EN c 74403

rOO.,
!

**One Thousand Two Hun(f~~ FiftY, "ve DOLLARS Twenty Seven CENTS**

" ' \ ~ ,/' ~
EnvirQ'::.Care,Co. \ ,"--- \ V
1570 St. ):"la~lAve~, . j ()
Gurnee, IL 60031 \

",.j "r ••• 0' •• _._~. "

12/18/2019

( : ,YI PEN' , " ,; ,.., ~ <' II' .:v . 74403
ENVI 4532 126 1211812019 00074403 1,255.27 111

REFERENCE NO. YOUR INVOICE NUMBER INVOICE DATE AMOUNT PAID DISCOUNT NET AMOUNT

29187671 SI9-111404 11114/2019 393.86 0.00 393.86

29187671 SI9-111404 11/1412019 393.87 0.00 393.87

29187697 PARTl9245ec 11111/2019 467.54 0.00 467.54

:. '" -"., '." ~, n:
~ I;, '
" t,
r.

. ,

JAN

~'.. . . ~:'. ..' ;:: ", : . . . ',;'

20



 

 

   EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

 

Meeting Date: January 21, 2020 
Name of Agenda Item: Ordinance No. 1602 – Setting the Final Property Tax for 2020 
Section of Agenda: Unfinished Business 
Department: Finance 
Council Committee Review: Legal Review: 

☐ Community Development          ☐ Public Safety ☐ Yes - Reviewed 

☒ Finance ☐ Public Works ☐ No - Not Reviewed 

☐ Parks    ☐ Other: _____________ ☒ Review Not Required 
Attachments: 

Ordinance No. 1602 – Real Estate Property Tax Levy 2020 

Summary Statement: 

The City of Lynden is required by State regulations to adopt a 2020 property tax levy. 
On November 18, 2019 the City Council approved Ordinance No. 1595 which was passed relying on the 
preliminary figures for the assessed valuation of the City's tax base, as provided by the Whatcom County 
Assessor's Office at that time. 
 
The original executive summary presented to Council on November 18, 2019 indicated that an ordinance 
setting the exact final levy would be forwarded to the Finance Committee and City Council for consideration 
when the County Assessor's Office provided the final assessed valuation for 2019.  The County Assessor's 
office has provided the final numbers at this time.  For Council information, the final calculations result in a total 
dollar levy amount of $3,422,000.  Per Council's direction this amount incorporated a 1% increase in the 
regular property tax, as allowed per the Revised Code of Washington.  This total dollar levy reflects a mil rate of 
$1.68926 per $1,000 of assessed valuation.  This is a decrease of approximately 11 cents from the 2019 rate. 
 
The Finance Committee reviewed this ordinance at their committee meeting, prior to the Council meeting on 
January 21, 2020. 

 
Recommended Action: 

Approve Ordinance No. XXXX and authorize the Mayor’s signature. 

 

CITY OF LYNDEN 

21



 

Ordinance No. 1602 

Page 1 of 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 1602 
 

AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF LYNDEN, WASHINGTON 
LEVYING TAXES FOR GENERAL MUNICIPAL PURPOSES FOR 

TAXES COLLECTIBLE AND PAYABLE IN 2020 
IN THE CITY OF LYNDEN, WASHINGTON 

 

The City Council of the City of Lynden does ordain as follows: 

Section A.  The City of Lynden hereby levies for 2020 taxes, for the purpose of meeting the 

expenditures of the City of Lynden, Washington, for the year 2020, the following specific sums: 

CURRENT EXPENSE FUND    $2,810,325 

BERTHUSEN PARK     $65,000 

2012 LTGO REFUNDING BOND DEBT  $546,675 

TOTAL       $3,422,000 

Section B.  In order to raise said specific sums, there is needed a levy of $1.68926 per thousand 

dollars of assessed valuation of the property in the City of Lynden as shown by the assessment 

roll for the year 2019. 

Section C.  Any ordinance or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

Section D. This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage by the City 

Council and after its approval by the Mayor, if approved, otherwise, as provided by law and five 

(5) days after the date of its publication. 

 

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL BY AN AFFIRMATIVE VOTE, _____ IN FAVOR, 

_____AGAINST AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR THIS 21st DAY OF JANUARY 2020. 

 

 

ATTEST:       MAYOR 

 

CITY CLERK 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

CITY ATTORNEY 

 

22



 

 

   EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

 

Meeting Date: January 21, 2020 

Name of Agenda Item: Quarterly Work Plan Update 

Section of Agenda: Other Business 

Department: Administration (Leadership Team) 

Council Committee Review: Legal Review: 

☐ Community Development          ☐ Public Safety ☐ Yes - Reviewed 

☐ Finance ☐ Public Works ☐ No - Not Reviewed 

☐ Parks    ☒ Other: N/A ☒ Review Not Required 

Attachments: 

2019 Q4 Work Plan 

Summary Statement: 

2019 Q4 Work Plan – Overview of Staff Work Plan.   

Recommended Action: 

Information only, no action required.  

 

CITY OF LYNDEN 

23



City of Lynden Leadership Team – 2019 Work Plan 
Department initiatives Strategies  Lead Updates & Modifications 

(Department activities to 
support City goals and 

objectives) 

(How to do it) Done in 
2019 

(Who is 
responsible) 

 

 

Page 1 of 32 
C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\bbc84795-b63d-4922-b12a-c8355da98816\ITEM-Attachment-001-058ea795c2e24637b29c5e0e151baae9.docx 
 January 2020 

Administration Department 
Promote 
Organizational 
Excellence 

1. Focus on Building 
Bridges at Lt 

2. Identify organization-
wide project. 

No Mike Q1: Used wireless voting device to help select Communication behaviors 
Q2: Continued work on Behaviors. 
Q3: Finalized Behaviors associated with Community. Working on Integrity.        
Discussing the 5 Dysfunctions of the Team. 
Q4: Finalized Behaviors for Integrity, began work on Excellence and identifying the 
“stealth theme for 2020 
 

Solicit formal guidance 
regarding city growth 

1. Advance this question 
with the Pepin Project. 

2. Make part of Council 
retreat? 

No Mike Q1: No progress. Perhaps at Council retreat? 
Q2: No progress. 
Q3: No progress 
Q3: No progress 

Support Peace Health 
Project 

TBD Yes Mike Q1: Peace Health working to find property. Project is a definite “go”. 
Q2: Contacted hospital several times checking progress. Working on identifying a         
site.  
Q3: Peace Health still trying to identify property 
Q4: Working actively with Peace Health. We are co-sponsors of visioning meeting 
with the community to identify health care needs, Peace Health expects to buy 
property in the next 60 days and to break ground on the project in 2020 

Schedule and Convene 
Huddle 

1. Schedule 
2. Determine if facilitated. 
3. Identify outcomes 

Yes Mike/Vanessa Q1: Haven’t discussed with LT yet. 
Q2: Likely to be early fall 
Q3: Scheduled for Sept. 26 at the Jansen. 
Q4: Convened huddle successfully. 

Advance electronic 
agendas for staff and 
Council. 

1. Identify councilmembers 
2. Migrate to all 

Committees 

Yes Pam Q1: Electronic agenda’s deployed and being used. 
Q2: Complete 

Identify project to 
advance citywide 
computer skills in EOC 

1. Survey staff. 
2. Prepare EOC space 

Yes Mike Q1: No progress. 
Q2: This task subsumed by another, below. 

24



City of Lynden Leadership Team – 2019 Work Plan 
Department initiatives Strategies  Lead Updates & Modifications 

(Department activities to 
support City goals and 

objectives) 

(How to do it) Done in 
2019 

(Who is 
responsible) 

 

 

Page 2 of 32 
C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\bbc84795-b63d-4922-b12a-c8355da98816\ITEM-Attachment-001-058ea795c2e24637b29c5e0e151baae9.docx 
 January 2020 

Identify “wet water” 
solution.  

1. Identify options. 
2. Select best candidate. 
3. Being implementation in 

2019. 

Yes Mike/Steve Q1: Hired Chuck Lindsay to identify candidates for surface water retainage. 
Q2: Identified potential water rights the City might acquire. Working to identify 
off-channel storage sites in Q3. 
Q3: Identified several potential sites for off-channel infiltration. This seems very 
promising. DOE interested. 
Q4: project is moving well. Meeting Dec. 10 with Lummi Nation to daylight the 
project to them. This initiative looks promising. 

Support Park/Rec Dist. 
Bond for 
Dickinson/Heusinkveld 

TBD  Yes Mike/Electeds Q1: This now tied in to Glenning St. property. 
Q2: Glenning St. property purchased. 
Q3: Monitoring 
Q4: Bond measure passed. 

25



City of Lynden Leadership Team – 2019 Work Plan 
Department initiatives Strategies  Lead Updates & Modifications 

(Department activities to 
support City goals and 

objectives) 

(How to do it) Done in 
2019 

(Who is 
responsible) 

 

 

Page 3 of 32 
C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\bbc84795-b63d-4922-b12a-c8355da98816\ITEM-Attachment-001-058ea795c2e24637b29c5e0e151baae9.docx 
 January 2020 

1. Advance $1.5M 
legislative request for 
trail. 

2. Coordinate meetings in 
Olympia. 

3. Work with Briahna as 
she advises. 

Yes Mike Q1: In process as a Commerce Dept. request. Also in 21 cent transportation 
budget. 
Q2: Trail request in Olympia unsuccessful. This item is dead for 2019 
Q3: Included in legislative agenda for 2020 session. 
Q4: No progress in Q4 but this will het hot in Q1 when the legislature convenes. 

4. Purge outdated code. 1. Identify sections to 
delete. 

2. Bring to Council through 
a committee TBD later. 

Yes Mike Q1: Bob C. to handle rewrite so they reflect current RCW. 
Q2: This likely to complete in Q3/Q4. 
Q3: Pending. Likely advance in late Q4. 
Q4: Councilmembers would like this advanced in Q1 2020 

5. Advance 
organization-wide 
Spring-Cleaning 
during Earth Day 
week (April 22). 

3. Set week 
4. Advertise in advance 
5. Solicit suggestions from 

staff. 

Yes All? Q1: No progress. Will begin this April 1. 
Q2: Second Spring Cleanup held. Spring Chicken Feed with staff at Fire Station. 
This item is complete 

6. Implement Drug 
Testing Policy & 
Program for 
Firefighters 

1. Review with Fire Chief 
Billmire. 

2. Finalize agreement with 
drug testing facility for 
firefighters (per CBA). 

3. Implement training and 
testing with firefighters. 

 

Yes Vanessa/Denise Q1: Chief Billmire and Vanessa met with Bostec. Confirmed Bostec is set up as a 
vendor, and we may begin testing right away for the Firefighters per CBA. 
Q2: On hold until new HR Manager hired. 
Q3: Manager hired, getting up to speed on other issues. Likely this to be delayed 
until 2020. 
Q4: No progress. We will make it a priority in 2020. 

7. Stabilize 
administrative 
support for 
Wellness/LEAF 
committee. 

8.  

1. Determine administrative 
support needs from the 
committee. 

2. Prioritize needs and areas 
for support. 

3. Ensure current 
documents and financial 
records are up-to-date. 

1. Develop/pursue long-
term strategy for 
support. 

Yes Vanessa/Pam/Denise Q1: Pam joined the Wellness committee and is providing administrative support. 
Committee still defining additional areas for support. Financial records and 
reporting still needs attention. 
Q2: Using volunteer requests to support events. 
Q3: Program seems to be stabilized and functioning well. 
Q4: As above. They did a bang up job on the Christmas Dinner. 

26



City of Lynden Leadership Team – 2019 Work Plan 
Department initiatives Strategies  Lead Updates & Modifications 

(Department activities to 
support City goals and 

objectives) 

(How to do it) Done in 
2019 

(Who is 
responsible) 

 

 

Page 4 of 32 
C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\bbc84795-b63d-4922-b12a-c8355da98816\ITEM-Attachment-001-058ea795c2e24637b29c5e0e151baae9.docx 
 January 2020 

9. Identify path forward 
on Personnel Policies 
and Procedures.  

10.  

1. Prioritize policies to be 
updated. 

2. Update one (or a few) at a 
time. 

3. May take multiple years. 
 

No Vanessa/Denise Q1: Approx. 3-5 policies identified. 
Q2: No progress. Will assign this to new HR Manager. 
Q3: No progress. Likely will delay until 2020 
Q4: No progress. Will begin work in 2020. 

11. Develop a draft 
Strategic Plan to 
begin Council 
discussion 

TBD No Mike Q1: This item added after Council retreat in April. 
Q2: Beginning to vet ideas with Leadership Team. 
Q3: A work in progress. Included as Huddle agenda item. 
Q4: Stalled. Need to revive to have something for the Council retreat. 
 

12. Reestablish Passport 
Program 

Determine what 
requirements are 

yes Mike Q2: Convened first meeting to discuss implementation. 
Q3: Convened second meeting. We will only allow volunteers and have a plan to 
acknowledge their work. Contacted the State Department for information to begin 
a Passport Acceptance Facility application. 
Q4: Actively working on this one. Recruiting for the part-time position that will 
perform this function. 

13. Coordinate and 
support inaugural 
council retreat. 

1. Select facilitator. 
2. Coordinate interview 

scheduling, facility 
rental, etc. 

3. Provide “day of” support 
to facilitator. 

Manage/coordinate post-
retreat debrief and next 
steps. 

Yes Denise Q1: Facilitator identified; retreat scheduled for April 18; interviews conducted with 
LT and individual council members. 
Q2: Conducted retreat. Tangible Outcome circulated 3 times to 
council/mayor/staff. 
Q3: Will discuss this with Council in Q4. 
Q4: No progress.  Move to 2020 

27



City of Lynden Leadership Team – 2019 Work Plan 
Department initiatives Strategies  Lead Updates & Modifications 

(Department activities to 
support City goals and 

objectives) 

(How to do it) Done in 
2019 

(Who is 
responsible) 

 

 

Page 5 of 32 
C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\bbc84795-b63d-4922-b12a-c8355da98816\ITEM-Attachment-001-058ea795c2e24637b29c5e0e151baae9.docx 
 January 2020 

14. Implement Text 
Archiving 

1. Receive leadership 
approval 

2. Send contract for legal 
review 

3. Send to committee 
4. Send to council 

Yes Nic Q1: Leadership has approved, and the documents have been reviewed by the city 
attorneys. 
Q1: Council Approval was given on April 15th and the contact was signed be the 
Mayor. 
Q2: A test rollout of 3 users has been started, and we should be able to go live by 
the end of August. 
Q3-Q4: Text archiving is being rolled out as phones are being replaced. A quarter 
of the city’s phones have text archiving enabled. 
Q4: Three quarters of the City’s devices are enrolled in text archiving. This will 
continue into 2020 as we replace phones. 
 
 

15. Implement Mobile 
Device Management 
Solution 

1. Setup device 
infrastructure 

2. Recall existing phones 
and tablets 

3. Setup all Police laptops 
and phones 

Yes Nic Q1: Account Setup completed 3/5/2019 
Q2: 21 of 80 devices are enrolled in the MDM. 6/11/2019 
Q3: Completed (9/25/2019) 

16. Implement Security 
Awareness Training 

1. Run baseline phishing 
campaign 

2. Notify users of security 
training 

3. Complete first training 
campaign 

4. Complete first phishing 
campaign 

Yes Nic Q1: Baseline was completed with 20% of users clicking on the simulated phishing 
email 
Q1: All users have completed the security awareness training 
Q2: Ongoing security awareness training has been configured, and all new 
employees are now setup to take the training within 30 days of starting 
automatically. 
(COMPLETED) 
 

17. Implement Peer to 
Peer encryption 
between Police and 
City Hall 

1. Research best solution 
to provide highspeed 
encryption 

2. Propose to leadership 
for purchase. 

3. Implement 

Yes Nic Q1: Research completed. Waiting on quotes for different options. 
Q2: On hold for additional quote. 
Q3: Additional research time is needed after seeing all quote options. The quotes 
have come in way above normal budgeted amounts. 
Q4: On hold until 2020. This project will be rolled into a larger project for analyzing 
costs of interdepartmental connections. 

18. Implement Two 
Factor Authentication 
for police  

19. and police vendors 

1. Trial Two factor 
authentication solutions 

2. Test in officer vehicles 
3. Purchase and implement 

Yes Nic Q1: Trial and testing is completed 
Q2: 12 of 14 users have been configured and trained. We are holding until two 
more monitor’s arrive in June. 
Q3: Completed (9/25/2019) 

28



City of Lynden Leadership Team – 2019 Work Plan 
Department initiatives Strategies  Lead Updates & Modifications 

(Department activities to 
support City goals and 

objectives) 

(How to do it) Done in 
2019 

(Who is 
responsible) 

 

 

Page 6 of 32 
C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\bbc84795-b63d-4922-b12a-c8355da98816\ITEM-Attachment-001-058ea795c2e24637b29c5e0e151baae9.docx 
 January 2020 

20. Continue working on 
EOC networking 
configuration 

1. Allocate old computers 
to EOC 

2. Terminate all 
connections to punch 
panel in rack 

3. Purchase switching for 
each desk 

No Nic Q1: Desk connections have been terminated. 
Q2: Workstations have been allocated and temporarily placed. 
Q3: On hold until new IT staff member joins. 
Q4: Network switches and wiring supplies have been purchased. This project will 
be moving into 2020. 

21. Replacement 
computers 

1. Purchase 
2. Image 
3. Schedule with individual 

computer installs with 
users 

Yes Laurie Q1: 15 Workstations and 11 laptops purchased 
Q2: 3 workstations and 11 laptops deployed 
Q3: On hold until new IT staff member joins. 
Q4: All 2019 workstations have been deployed. 
(COMPLETED) 

22. Longarm Conversion 1.  Yes Nic Q1: Go Live! 01/10/2019 
Q1-Q4: Deal with ongoing conversion glitches and bugs. 
Update: Bugs are down to a minimum as of 07/2019. Longarm still requires 4-8 
hours of work a month. 
Update 2: The new Longarm reporting module for federal/state crime reporting 
has been implemented, and we are also going to implement a disclosures module. 
Update 3: The conversion can be considered completed. We have implemented 
the final disclosures module in Q4. 
(COMPLETED) 

End - Administration Department 
  

29



City of Lynden Leadership Team – 2019 Work Plan 
Department initiatives Strategies  Lead Updates & Modifications 

(Department activities to 
support City goals and 

objectives) 

(How to do it) Done in 
2019 

(Who is 
responsible) 

 

 

Page 7 of 32 
C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\bbc84795-b63d-4922-b12a-c8355da98816\ITEM-Attachment-001-058ea795c2e24637b29c5e0e151baae9.docx 
 January 2020 

Finance Department 

Financial Software Conversion 1. Sign Final Contract 
2. Schedule kickoff and 

conversion timetable; 
coordinate with the other 
departments 

3. Initiate training cycle 
4. Complete technical 

analysis 

No Anthony Q1:  Set for February conversion start did not happen but, did start conversion in 
March.  Timeline for conversion completed set for October 2019. 
Q2:  Initial data submittals complete. Project on track, system still on schedule to go 
live in October 2019. 
Q3:  Started phase two with the systems analysts. Training will probably be mid-
January with go live date estimated in late January 2020. 
Q4:  Data conversion complete. Most of the technical analysis is complete. Certain 
Technical issues need resolution which will not be completed in 2019. Realistic go 
live date End of February to possibly mid-April 2020. 

Continue Budget process 
re-structure using best 
available practices 

1. Outline further 
improvements to the 
budget process from last 
years after action report 

2. Communicate with 
leadership new process 

Yes Anthony/Stacy Q1:  Some improvements have been implemented while further work is needed.  
The Budget calendar has been revised to reflect some scheduling improvements. 
Q2:  2020 Budget on schedule. Process improvement revisions have been 
implemented. 
Q3:  New process was implemented in 2019. Will do an after action assessment 
once the Budget is completed. 
Q4:  After action review complete. Additional improvements have been noted and 
scheduled for the 2020 Budget Kick off. 

Improve performance 
reporting  

1. Improve forward looking 
forecast and deep dive 
analysis 

2. Incorporate reporting 
from new software 

Yes Anthony Q1:  Some reporting improvements have been implemented and the feedback from 
the Council has been very positive.  Departmental reporting and the deep dive 
analytics we are moving towards will not be ready until the new software is 
implemented. 
Q2:  Ad hoc informational reporting has been incorporated into our process. 
Q3:  Additional Department of Revenue reporting has been added. 
Q4:  Reporting enhancements have been identified and are being incorporated into 
the new Caselle software. 

Re-structure Capital Asset 
tracking and metrics 

1.  Improved asset tracking 
spreadsheet 

2. Improve replacement 
budgeting process 

Yes Anthony/Stacy Q1:  No progress, new software has priority.  Re-scheduled for 2Q. 
Q2:  Modified Capital Asset sheets used for the 2020 Budget and will be the 
baseline for developing a true Strategic Plan. 
Q3:  Capital Asset sheet was used in the formulating the 2019 Budget. Further 
changes will be made once the new software is in place. 
Q4:  Hold until new software module is live. 

30



City of Lynden Leadership Team – 2019 Work Plan 
Department initiatives Strategies  Lead Updates & Modifications 

(Department activities to 
support City goals and 

objectives) 

(How to do it) Done in 
2019 

(Who is 
responsible) 

 

 

Page 8 of 32 
C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\bbc84795-b63d-4922-b12a-c8355da98816\ITEM-Attachment-001-058ea795c2e24637b29c5e0e151baae9.docx 
 January 2020 

Initiate Policy Review and 
Rewrite 

1. Review and prioritization 
of rewrites 

No Anthony/Linde Q1:  Procurement and credit card policies already identified as priorities.  Travel 
policy has been re-written and the Resolution updating the policy goes to Council 
April 15th. 
Q2:  Travel Policy was approved by Council and per diem rates updated. 
Procurement Policy is a work in progress, Credit Card Policy re-write near 
completion. 
Q3:  Further re-write was needed in the procurement policy, near 90% completed. 
SAO was satisfied with our progress. 
Q4:  Credit card policy has been re-written and is complete. Other policy re-writes 
continue. Process is ongoing and will take the next two years to complete. Maybe 
longer. 

Continued training and 
professional development 
within the department 

1. Encourage and continue 
professional training 

2. Knowledge share and 
cross training 
development 

Yes All Q1:  Registered for first training classes in February. Entire department completed 
the SAO’s “BARS Cash Basis” training and IT’s “KnowBe4” cybersecurity training. 
Q2:  Remainder of the training time and resources in 2019 will be focused on the 
new software along with our processes around the system. Further cross training 
once the new system is in place. 
Q3:  All 2019 training is complete.  More cross-training for proper back up duties is 
still required and will continue into 2020.  
Q4:  2019 was completed last quarter. Cross training efforts are not complete and 
will continue. Probably multi-year effort required. 

End - Finance Department 
  

31



City of Lynden Leadership Team – 2019 Work Plan 
Department initiatives Strategies  Lead Updates & Modifications 

(Department activities to 
support City goals and 

objectives) 

(How to do it) Done in 
2019 

(Who is 
responsible) 

 

 

Page 9 of 32 
C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\bbc84795-b63d-4922-b12a-c8355da98816\ITEM-Attachment-001-058ea795c2e24637b29c5e0e151baae9.docx 
 January 2020 

Fire Department 

Maintain department 
stability 

1. Monitor need for AC 
position vs staffing with 
floater and impact on OT 

Ongoing Mark 
Q1: Monitoring time in meetings, office, training, Duty Officer, personal time. – 

what’s not getting done? 

Q2: Reviewed AC job description, discussed recruitment process/timing with Mike. 
Q3: Job description and announcement finalized, met with Kara Turner to discuss 

details/timeline, job posted on 9/3. 
Q4: Completed recruitment process, hired Tom Hatley, will start 1/1/2020. 
 

Formalize leadership role 
in emergency 
preparedness 

1. The Fire Chief to all DEM 
meetings 

2. Take over any 
training/plans/scenarios 
for emergencies. 

Ongoing Mark 
Q1: Attended WC LEPC meeting, participated in emergency declaration after 

action, reviewed all alerts from WC EM. 

Q2: No action 
Q3: Updated AlertSense list for new employees – plan for Oct exercise. 
Q4: Attended AlertSense update training session at EOC 11/5. 
 

Assess and determine 
needs for City EOC, 
equipment, resources, 
logistics, staffing 

1. Visit other EOC’s of 
similar size cities, collect 
information regarding 
their process & timeline 
for implementation 

Ongoing Mark 
Q1: Did walkthrough of WC EOC during recent Mass Casualty tabletop. 

Q2: No action 

Q3: No action 

Q4: No action 
 

32



City of Lynden Leadership Team – 2019 Work Plan 
Department initiatives Strategies  Lead Updates & Modifications 

(Department activities to 
support City goals and 

objectives) 

(How to do it) Done in 
2019 

(Who is 
responsible) 

 

 

Page 10 of 32 
C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\bbc84795-b63d-4922-b12a-c8355da98816\ITEM-Attachment-001-058ea795c2e24637b29c5e0e151baae9.docx 
 January 2020 

Recruit Volunteers 1. Review volunteer 
program regarding certs, 
training, staffing, use, pay 
– explore part-time vs 
volunteer to improve 
recruitment and 
retention 

Ongoing Mark/Officers 
Q1: Reviewed participation via timesheets following recent staffing decision 

changes – OT went down and Vol hours went up. 

Q2: Made additional changes to FT scheduling system to increase opportunities for 
volunteers. Added three new volunteers to ranks, will begin new recruit 
program in the near future – 13 applications. 

Q3: Brought on 2 new recruits, 1 has FF & EMT needs HM, other began recruit 
academy 9/7. Have one FF who worked during Fair has filled out application – I 
believe would make a good PT employee. 

Q4: Attended recruit academy graduation 12/19. Continued to take contact info for 
next year’s recruits. Continue to encourage more FT coverage by vols. 

 
 

Public Safety/Education 
classes, tours, training   

1. Community CPR classes 
2. Station tours 
3. Extinguisher classes 
4. School programs 

Ongoing Chief 
Q1: Held first community CPR class on 2/6, had 8 students. Have 10 signed up for 

4/3 class.  

Q2: Held 2nd & 3rd community CPR class, multiple station tours, conducted fire 
alarm evacuation drill. 

Q3: Held 3rd community CPR/1st Aid class, numerous station tours scheduled for 
Sept, have requests for two fire safety presentation, HS STEM/Career invite. 

Q4: Completed another community CPR/1st Aid class – 18 participants. Multiple 
station tours. 

 

Fire Prevention Inspection 
program 

1. Expand inspection 
program to include duty 
crews for pre-identified 
occupancies 

Ongoing Mark/Officers/FM 
crews 

Q1: List created of top 12 businesses, crews will begin walkthroughs beginning in 
April.  

Q2: Ongoing business inspections, will follow-up on crew inspections. 
Q3: Ongoing business inspections, crews are doing walkthroughs of high-risk 

buildings. 
Q4: Numerous projects/plans reviewed, continued business inspections . 

33



City of Lynden Leadership Team – 2019 Work Plan 
Department initiatives Strategies  Lead Updates & Modifications 

(Department activities to 
support City goals and 

objectives) 

(How to do it) Done in 
2019 

(Who is 
responsible) 

 

 

Page 11 of 32 
C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\bbc84795-b63d-4922-b12a-c8355da98816\ITEM-Attachment-001-058ea795c2e24637b29c5e0e151baae9.docx 
 January 2020 

Develop Department 
Leadership 

1. Determine viable 
succession plan to include 
training 
recommendations, 
education, mentoring, 
delegation, update job 
descriptions 

Ongoing Mark/Training 
Officer 

Q1: Continue to push out officer training opportunities, officer meetings, 
leadership topics. 

Q2: Have incorporated leadership topic/discussion into officers’ meetings. Have 
recommended classes and posted announcements for classes. Reviewed AC job 
description. 

Q3: Officer meeting leadership topics, multiple training opportunities posted, 
protected class/discrimination discussion regarding Kate’s return. 

Q4: Monthly officers’ meetings, most recent included discussion on gender bias, 
bullying, and hazing. Forward Curt Varone law news articles and Gordon 
Graham tips. 

 

Develop a plan to cover 
the east part of Lynden 

1. Look at covering East 
Lynden, manning 
Northwood Station 
career/volunteers, 5th ALS 
unit location, review call 
volume data for viability, 
possible mutual aid 
agreement 

 

Ongoing Mark/Officers 
 

Q1: Had discussion with NWFR regarding station 72, continue to review mutual aid 
data for that area. 

Q2: Discussed possible joint staffing solutions with Chief Noonchester. Attended 
two meetings discussing joint Paramedic participation program. 

Q3: District 21 sending two personnel to paramedic class – will monitor viability for 
LFD to participate. Multiple large incident auto-aid calls in recent months have 
tested our ability to cover calls – will discuss at next ops chiefs meeting. 

Q4: NWFR having audit performed to determine capital facility needs, station 72 
may become available. 

 

Develop a plan on 
replacing apparatus and 
how to pay for it. 

1. 10 to 20-year 
replacement. Spread 
sheet. Ladder truck a 
priority, look for funding 
options – grants, impact 
fees, lease options 

Ongoing Mark/Officers Q1: Reviewed 2016 comprehensive plan and previous spreadsheet for current 
replacement schedule. 

Q2: Started the capital plan for this upcoming budget cycle, will update as needed. 

Q3: Completed capital plan for 2020 budget, Sandi successful for $57,000 AFG for 
exhaust system. Began research into leasing fire apparatus and command 
vehicles. 

Q4: GEMT funding approved - $103,000 for this year, should increase each year. 

34



City of Lynden Leadership Team – 2019 Work Plan 
Department initiatives Strategies  Lead Updates & Modifications 

(Department activities to 
support City goals and 

objectives) 

(How to do it) Done in 
2019 

(Who is 
responsible) 

 

 

Page 12 of 32 
C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\bbc84795-b63d-4922-b12a-c8355da98816\ITEM-Attachment-001-058ea795c2e24637b29c5e0e151baae9.docx 
 January 2020 

Fire Station needs analysis 1. Analysis of current 
station layout/logistics 
for apparatus, locker 
room, sleeping quarters, 
kitchen, offices, storage, 
parking 

Ongoing All FD personnel Q1: Have had discussions with crews/Sandi regarding layout, needs. possible 
changes. 

Q2: Had discussion with Mike and Mayor of possible solutions. Met with Tim Faber 
to discuss cost/steps of having a formal bid drawn up for possible station 
remodel. 

Q3: Second meeting with Tim Faber, did walkthrough of District 1 station 82, have 
3rd meeting to discuss proposal on 9/25. 

Q4: Met with Tim Faber to go over revised plans, meeting scheduled for 12/11 to 
finalize. Funding source identified and ordinance changed and adopted to 
allow for broader application to include fire station expansion. 

Image Trend 
implementation and data 
transfer 

1. Work with WC EMS and 
City IT to manage 
switchover from 
Emergency Reporting to 
Image Trend. Determine 
need to retain Emergency 
Reporting 

2019 Mark/Sandi/IT Q1: Had second implementation meeting with Jeremy, Sandi is working with him to 
enter employee info into system. 

Q2: Jeremy conducted multiple training sessions with crews, next step is to set a 
go-live date for implementation. 

Q3: Successful switch from ER to ImageTrend, currently working out bugs, crews 
have handled the switch well. 

Q4: Implemented CQI program to improve report writing, working on generating 
data reports and working out issues with NFIRS reporting. 

Monthly Report 1. Analyze alternative 
means of collecting run 
data – CAD, Emergency 
Reporting, Image Trend, 
to reduce or eliminate 
manual entry 

2019 Mark/Sandi Q1: Expanded reports used for monthly report – graphs for time of day and day of 
week. 

Q2: New reports used to analyze run times, available time, overlapping calls, 
training, and inspections. 

Q3: Getting familiar with ImageTrend report capabilities, not as intuitive but 
greater potential, especially if/when they add the mapping module. 

Q4: Crews began using auto generating capability to cut down on time spent 
writing reports – new issues popped up. Working with Officers to nail down 
their role in reviewing reports for accuracy and completeness. 

35



City of Lynden Leadership Team – 2019 Work Plan 
Department initiatives Strategies  Lead Updates & Modifications 

(Department activities to 
support City goals and 

objectives) 

(How to do it) Done in 
2019 

(Who is 
responsible) 

 

 

Page 13 of 32 
C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\bbc84795-b63d-4922-b12a-c8355da98816\ITEM-Attachment-001-058ea795c2e24637b29c5e0e151baae9.docx 
 January 2020 

File reorganization 1. Organize and purge old 
computer files on G Drive 

2019 Mark/Sandi/Crews Q1: Started, personnel contacted to begin deleting old files. 

Q2: All personnel directed to continue purging old, outdated files. 

Q3: No action 

Q4: No action – will get Sarah involved once she settles in. 

AlertSense exercise 1. Conduct 2 AlertSense 
simulations 

2019 Mark Q1: Used AlertSense during last month’s snow events. 

Q2: No action 

Q3 Updated list with new employees, next exercise in Oct. 

Q4: Attended Alertsense update training session 11/5 at EOC. 

End - Fire Department  

36



City of Lynden Leadership Team – 2019 Work Plan 
Department initiatives Strategies  Lead Updates & Modifications 

(Department activities to 
support City goals and 

objectives) 

(How to do it) Done in 
2019 

(Who is 
responsible) 

 

 

Page 14 of 32 
C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\bbc84795-b63d-4922-b12a-c8355da98816\ITEM-Attachment-001-058ea795c2e24637b29c5e0e151baae9.docx 
 January 2020 

Parks Department 

YMCA pool resurface 
project/Funding from Rec. 
District 

1. Keep Rec. District involved 
in funding 

Yes Vern Q1 Rec. District still committed to participating 
Q2 Project scheduled for July 
Q3- Completed 

Develop a plan for the 
Benson park property 

1. Develop a plan and 
timeline for development 
of Benson Park 

No Vern Q1- No progress 
Q2- No progress; but hoping to at least get a base line idea by the end of the year 
Q3 No progress 
Q4 Will be working with the Rec. District to plan the use of their bond proceeds 

Tennis Court upgrades 
1. Finalize a yes or no on 

continuing use of courts 
Yes Vern Q1. Still waiting to hear from the Middle School on whether theirs will be open to 

the public 

Q2 Will be requesting direction from Parks Committee on how or if  to proceed 

Q3 No progress 

Q4 Moved to 2020 for final decision 

Park & Trail Master Plan 
1.  Work with planning on 
finalizing the Parks & Trail 
Master Plan in 2019 

Yes Vern, Dave, Heidi Q1 Survey completed by Dave 

Q2 No action this quarter 

Q3 Will be working with Planning to restart the process 

Q4 Planning Department taking the lead on this one 

Determine the viability of 
light upgrades for the 
ballfields 

1.  Continue investigating 
possibilities for upgrades to 
field lighting 

No Vern & Robert Q1 No further progress 
Q2 Ditto 
Q3 No progress 
Q4 Moved to 2020 workplan for council decision on moving forward 

Develop the Aaron Drive 
park property 

1.  Install sports court and 
picnic tables, and benches 

Yes Vern Q1 Will be getting estimates for the sports court this spring 
Q2 Benches installed 
Q3 will be ordering picnic tables 
Q4 Moved to 2020 work plan  

37



City of Lynden Leadership Team – 2019 Work Plan 
Department initiatives Strategies  Lead Updates & Modifications 

(Department activities to 
support City goals and 

objectives) 

(How to do it) Done in 
2019 

(Who is 
responsible) 

 

 

Page 15 of 32 
C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\bbc84795-b63d-4922-b12a-c8355da98816\ITEM-Attachment-001-058ea795c2e24637b29c5e0e151baae9.docx 
 January 2020 

Berthusen Park upgrades 
Barn lighting and entry & 
Replace first Restroom 

1.  Install new lighting and an 
entry door to the barn. 
2.  Replace first restroom 

Yes Vern Q1 New lights installed.  Door to be installed this spring 
Q2 Working with PW to complete the restrooms in the fall & a Boy Scout will be 
using the door project as his Eagle Scout project 
Q3 Restrooms will be pushed back to spring of 2020 
Q4 Public Works is taking the lead on this one 

Begin process of 
succession for Parks 
Director 

1.  Develop a plan for 
succession 

No Vern/Mike Q1 No progress 
Q2 Ditto 
Q3 Ditto 
Q4 On hold  

Install retaining wall at the 
New Middle School trail 

1.  Complete installation of 
retaining wall at New Middle 
School trail 

No Vern/Mark Q1 Scheduled for completion this spring 
Q2 About ¾ complete 
Q3  Completed 

Trail Maintenance/Rebuild 
1. Develop a plan and process 
for maintaining and rebuilding 
sections of existing trails 

Yes Vern & PW Q1 No progress or plans yet 
Q2 Ditto 
Q3 Meeting with PW staff to determine next steps 
Q4 Moved to 2020 work plan 

Trail Planning extensions 

 

1.  Begin discussion on which 
sections to be extended next 
and plan for future extensions 
to the trail 

Yes Vern & Planning Q1 Had initial meeting on future trail extensions 
Q2  Initial preliminary trail plan developed with Planning 
Q3 Updating the trail map as we go 
Q4 Trail planning in progress 

Dickinson Property 
Planning 

1.  Develop the plan for future 
development of the park 
portion of the property 

Yes Vern & Q1 Waiting on determination of usage by Dept. of Ecology 
Q2 Ditto 
Q3 Still waiting 
Q4 Moved to 2020 workplan 

Rec District Bond 2019 1.  Work with the District to 
forward their plan for a bond 
issue to completion 

Yes Vern Q1 Final decision to have a bond issue for 3 mil.  Starting to work on forming a 
promotions committee. 
Q2 District approved resolution to add bond to the ballot in November 
Q3 Working with the district and promotion committee on promoting the bond 
Q4 Success- passed with a 62.18% favorable vote 

Rotary Project Working with a committee 
to implement the plans to 
install climbing rocks, 
basketball courts etc. at 
Bender 

? Rotary 
committee 

Q2 Fund raising a great success so far. 
Waiting to have permits approved. 
Q3 Beginning construction in Sept. 
Q4 Boulder Park finished, courts postponed until spring of 2020 

38



City of Lynden Leadership Team – 2019 Work Plan 
Department initiatives Strategies  Lead Updates & Modifications 

(Department activities to 
support City goals and 

objectives) 

(How to do it) Done in 
2019 

(Who is 
responsible) 

 

 

Page 16 of 32 
C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\bbc84795-b63d-4922-b12a-c8355da98816\ITEM-Attachment-001-058ea795c2e24637b29c5e0e151baae9.docx 
 January 2020 

Park Security Discussion and planning on 
how best to provide security 
at our parks 

Yes Vern/Robert P Q3 Met with various individuals and getting quotes on lighting, cameras etc. 
Also looking at having a city ordinance relating to park hours. 
Q4 Worked with the PD to purchase solar powered camera 
Added a city ordinance setting park hours. 

BMX pump track Considering adding a pump 
track at Bender 

NO Vern/ Q3 preliminary discussion on feasibility, location, and outside funding 
Q4 Will be making a presentation to council in December 

End - Parks Department 
  

39



City of Lynden Leadership Team – 2019 Work Plan 
Department initiatives Strategies  Lead Updates & Modifications 

(Department activities to 
support City goals and 

objectives) 

(How to do it) Done in 
2019 

(Who is 
responsible) 

 

 

Page 17 of 32 
C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\bbc84795-b63d-4922-b12a-c8355da98816\ITEM-Attachment-001-058ea795c2e24637b29c5e0e151baae9.docx 
 January 2020 

Planning Department 

Added in Q3: 
Create a Fee Addendum to 
review /  increase / add 
Land Use Application Fees 
 

1. Draft Fee Addendum 
2. Create comparison 

review of similar Cities 
3. Add to 2020 Budget 

Draft 
4. Bring to CDC 
5. Approved within the 

2020 Budget process 

YES! Heidi Q3:  Addendum drafted.  Comparisons completed.  CDC agenda item for 8-28-19. 
Q4: Public hearing held.  Approved with 2020 Budget process.  Completed task. 

Added in Q2: 
2020 Update to Shoreline 
Master Program (SMP) and 
DOE approval of a 
‘modern’ City SMP 

1. Identify 2020 updates 
2. Review with DOE 
3. Open House re updates 
4. Joint public hearing with 

City and DOE – PC 
recommendation of an 
initial determination 

5. Local DOE approval of 
initial determination 

6. Dept of Commerce 
review completed 

7. City Council approval 
8. Regional DOE approval 

YES! Heidi, Dave Q2: Updates identified.  DOE review. 
Q3: Open House re SMP updates held on 7-11-19.  Joint public hearing held on 7-
25-19.  Local DOE approval of initial determination issued on 7-30-19.  DOC 
comment period scheduled to end 8-20-19.  SMP scheduled for 9-3-19 Council 
meeting. 
Q4:  Approved by City Council, DOE and no comments from DOC.  Appeal period 
closed.  Completed task. 

Process: Create Hearing 
Examiner process  

1. Redline relevant code 
sections 

2. Research other 
jurisdictions 

3. Take to CDC 
4. Create and advertise a 

RFP 
5. Seek approval for code 

revisions 
6. Select hearing examiner 

Yes No Heidi 2018: Workshopped with Planning Commission.  Returned to CDC with legal input.  
Edits not yet completed. 
Q1: Dusted off document.  Legal clarification from BC re process. 
Q2: No progress. 
Q4: Identified as a priority for 2020. 
 

40



City of Lynden Leadership Team – 2019 Work Plan 
Department initiatives Strategies  Lead Updates & Modifications 

(Department activities to 
support City goals and 

objectives) 

(How to do it) Done in 
2019 

(Who is 
responsible) 

 

 

Page 18 of 32 
C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\bbc84795-b63d-4922-b12a-c8355da98816\ITEM-Attachment-001-058ea795c2e24637b29c5e0e151baae9.docx 
 January 2020 

Pepin Creek: Zoning 
Standards and Design 
Standards 

1. Zoning code and design 
standards drafted 

2. Workshops and feedback 
collected. 

3. Adoption process. 

YES! Heidi Q1: Completed! Zoning standards adopted 1-24-19.  City-wide Residential Design 
Standards adopted 3-4-19. 
 
 

Pepin Creek: Subarea Plan, 
Flood Hazard Overlay, and 
Comp Plan Amendment 

1. Identify zoning and 
density targets for NW 
UGA 

2. Public participation. 
3. Environmental Review 
4. Design Standards 

Completion 
5. Extend Moratorium 
6. Transportation Plan 

Completion 
7. Subarea plan Completion 

(land use) 
8. Financial Plan 

Completion 
9. Lift Moratorium with 

Conditions 
 

YES! Heidi Q1: Zoning targets identified in 2018. Daft released 9-12-18.  Moratorium extended 
until Sept 2019.  Unit potential recalculated after zoning category changes.  Zoning 
layout and circulation workshopped and discussed in more detail.   
Q2: Sub-Area plan document remains in draft form until financial mitigation study 
reaches completion. Transportation network revisited as creek realignment 
engineering is studied. Flood Hazard Overlay brought to 6-20-19 open house. 
Q3:  Moratorium extended by 6 mos.  Engage with Communita for sub-area plan 
revisions. 
Q4:  Flood Hazard Overlay dropped as this related to SEPA mitigation fees.  Comp 
Plan Amendment added to reflect revised zoning arrangement. Plan to public 
hearing with PC on 11-21-19.  Circulation / park layouts revised.  Public hearing and 
approval with City Council on 12-16-19.  Completed task. 

Pepin Creek: Financial 
Mitigation Study 

1. RFP and Selection 
process for consultant 

2. Budget and scope 
negotiations 

3. Study process 
4. Adopt findings 
5. Lift Moratorium 
6. Implement SEPA fees 
7. Implementation of LID 

No Heidi Q1: Consultant selected.  Budget and scope completed.  Contract agreement with 
Berk Consulting signed.  Kick-off meeting scheduled for April 3. 
Q2: Scope of SEPA mitigation and LID studies defined.  Area of proposed benefit 
identified.  Cost estimates received from engineering team 6-10-19. 
Q3: SEPA mitigation fees related to stormwater found to be a dead end.  Fees 
related to flood mitigation would be unprecedented.  Efforts shifted toward use of 
LID and “no contest” conditions on moratorium properties. 
Q4: Work paused until January 2020. 

41



City of Lynden Leadership Team – 2019 Work Plan 
Department initiatives Strategies  Lead Updates & Modifications 

(Department activities to 
support City goals and 

objectives) 

(How to do it) Done in 
2019 

(Who is 
responsible) 

 

 

Page 19 of 32 
C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\bbc84795-b63d-4922-b12a-c8355da98816\ITEM-Attachment-001-058ea795c2e24637b29c5e0e151baae9.docx 
 January 2020 

Downtown: Address 
sidewalk encroachments, 
outdoor dining, 
merchandise display. 

1. Create Outdoor Dining 
Permit process 

2. Revise code to address 
current sidewalk use / 
needs. 

3. Advance 4th Street design 
concepts 

4. Identify funding sources 
(grants) 

 

Yes Heidi Q1: Code revisions drafted in 2018.  No progress in Q1. 
Q2: Met with DBA representatives about bike rack installation. 
Q3: No progress. 
Q4: No progress. 

Revise the South HBD plan 1. Review existing plan 
2. Confirm Policy Guiding 

Development 
3. Stakeholder meetings 
4. Identify incremental steps 

 

Yes Heidi Q1: No progress. 
Q2: Currently no pending applications in this area.  South HBD plan revision put on 
hold. 
Q3 and Q4: No progress 
 

Update the Park and Trails 
Masterplan 

1. Conduct review of 
existing plan 

2. Public surveys and 
stakeholder participation 

3. Draft plan 
4. Stakeholder review 
5. Public participation 
6. Committee review 
7. Adoption 
 

No Heidi Q1: Review of existing plan completed.  Online public survey completed with 
1,000+ responses.  Focus group on trails met.  New trails plan completed. 
Q2: Developed draft outline of the plan document and began drafting content. 
Q3 and Q4:  Drafting continues.  Graphic related to walkability of the park system 
was developed. 

Create Impact Fee Deferral 
Program (and shift TIF 
responsibility to Public 
Works) 

1. Finalize changes to Title 
3 

2. Coordinate with PW as 
needed. 

3. Bring to Committee 
4. Legal review 
5. Council Adoption 

YES! Heidi Q1: No progress. 
Q2:No progress. 
Q3: No progress. 
Q4: Completed task.  Amendments to LMC 3.44, 3.46, 3.47 approved.  Fee deferral 
program valid as of January 1, 2020. 
 

42



City of Lynden Leadership Team – 2019 Work Plan 
Department initiatives Strategies  Lead Updates & Modifications 

(Department activities to 
support City goals and 

objectives) 

(How to do it) Done in 
2019 

(Who is 
responsible) 

 

 

Page 20 of 32 
C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\bbc84795-b63d-4922-b12a-c8355da98816\ITEM-Attachment-001-058ea795c2e24637b29c5e0e151baae9.docx 
 January 2020 

Code Update: Short Term 
Rentals 

1. Draft code update 
related to STR’s 

2. Legal review 
3. Bring to CDC 
4. Public participation 
5. Bring to PC 
6. Bring to Council for 

adoption 

No Heidi Q1: No progress 
Q2: No progress.  Move to 2020 workplan. 

Participate in Buildable 
Land Program 
 

1. Meet with Planners 
Group and the County 
consultant 

2. Develop strategy to 
collect data 

3. Collect, format, and 
submit data as required 
by July 2019. 

4. Phase 2 of program 
continues with data 
collection – test run and 
then all years. 

No Heidi Q1:  Met with Community Attributes, Inc (the consultant for the County) for kick-off 
meeting, interviews regarding Lynden issues, and interview results meeting.  Next 
meeting scheduled for May. 
Q2:  Monthly meetings with Whatcom County planners.  Methodology document 
drafted.  Data collection tools created.  Concepts for continued assistance from CAI 
floated among planners.  Plat area requirements implemented in platting process. 
Q3: Implemented new data summaries on all plats and lot line adjustments. 
Attended monthly meetings.  Contributed to methodology and data collection tool 
revisions. 
Q4:  Began 3 month test run of data entry with Planning and PW staff due 1-31-20. 
 

43



City of Lynden Leadership Team – 2019 Work Plan 
Department initiatives Strategies  Lead Updates & Modifications 

(Department activities to 
support City goals and 

objectives) 

(How to do it) Done in 
2019 

(Who is 
responsible) 

 

 

Page 21 of 32 
C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\bbc84795-b63d-4922-b12a-c8355da98816\ITEM-Attachment-001-058ea795c2e24637b29c5e0e151baae9.docx 
 January 2020 

Develop Historic 
Preservation Printed 
Materials (with grant 
funding) 

1. Hire a consultant 
2. Develop materials 
3. Vet with the Lynden 

Historic Preservation 
Commission (LHPC) 

4. Review product draft 
with CDC 

5. Revise as needed 
6. Print 
7. Request reimbursement 

YES! Heidi / Dave Q1: RFP published.  Resulted in one proposal from the previous Historic Pres. 
consultant, Northwest Vernacular.  Contract signed. 
Q2:  Northwest Vernacular met with LHPC for strategy session.  Draft language 
developed for materials.  Meeting planned for July to discuss draft with LHPC. 
Q3:  Completed development of materials. 
Q4:  Reimbursement requested and provided.  Completed task. 

Census 2020 1. Get up to speed with 
responsibilities 

2. Participate in New 
Construction Program 

3. Assign and delegate as 
needed 

No Heidi Q1: Regional kick-off meeting planned for May 1. 
Q2: Attended May 1st kick off.  Registered the City for Census Bureau’s New 
Construction Program. 
Q3:  No new requirements at this time. 
Q4:  Korene, Jean, and Christina completed the New Construction Program 

End - Planning Department 
  

44



City of Lynden Leadership Team – 2019 Work Plan 
Department initiatives Strategies  Lead Updates & Modifications 

(Department activities to 
support City goals and 

objectives) 

(How to do it) Done in 
2019 

(Who is 
responsible) 

 

 

Page 22 of 32 
C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\bbc84795-b63d-4922-b12a-c8355da98816\ITEM-Attachment-001-058ea795c2e24637b29c5e0e151baae9.docx 
 January 2020 

Police Department 
Active Threat Updates – 
Annual Training and 
System Testing  

1. Determine type of threat   
2. Establish timeline for 

dept. training and system 
testing 

3. Interact & train with all 
City Departments, 
Municipal Court, City 
Council. 

Ongoing  Lt. Bos 
Sgt. Martin 
Sgt. Beld 

Q1: L. T. determined threat subject matter as “Active Shooter.” 
Q2: Plan and schedule panic buttons in City offices 

Finalize frequency usage 
with WhatComm and NW 
Communications 

1. Countywide agency 
collaboration on 
jurisdiction of frequency 
usage 

2. Program radios 
3. Implement plan 

yes Chief 
Lt. Bos 

 Q1: Still pending. WCSO approved 3 mo. extension for low band. Awaiting info 
from NW Communications for repeater equipment update at Sumas Mt. 
Q2: WCSO has opened the crossband repeater. Confirm frequency and program 
radios. 

Broaden Community 
Relations (lower crime 
rate) 

1. Meet with schools for 
education/PR 
opportunities 

2. Increase communications 
regarding threat 
assessment 

3. Work on annual table 
top exercise 

Ongoing  Chief 
Lt. Bos 

Q1: Two Mtgs completed. PD personnel now with prox. card access for all LC and 
Lynden schools. First of many mini table top exercises completed 3-19-19. 
Lynden Watch Program – 1st mtg with interested citizens completed April 10 
Q2: Continue implementing program and add $10,000 in 2020 budget. 

Pursue Operation 
Stonegarden 2017 & 2018 
Grants 

1. Use overtime allocations 
to promote BP Mission 

2. Application of 2019 grant 
3. Meet with USBP, WCSO, 

and other LE agencies to 
establish allocations 

4. Complete Sub-recipient 
agreement, and obtain 
Mayor’s signature 

Ongoing Chief 
Lt. Bos 
Holly 

Q1: Border Patrol County Wide Ops planning completed 3-6-19. 
Q2: Workshop completed on April 23rd for 2019 Grant preparation. Begin to   
schedule shifts to use 2017 funding. 
 

45



City of Lynden Leadership Team – 2019 Work Plan 
Department initiatives Strategies  Lead Updates & Modifications 

(Department activities to 
support City goals and 

objectives) 

(How to do it) Done in 
2019 

(Who is 
responsible) 

 

 

Page 23 of 32 
C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\bbc84795-b63d-4922-b12a-c8355da98816\ITEM-Attachment-001-058ea795c2e24637b29c5e0e151baae9.docx 
 January 2020 

Re-establish Bicycle Patrol 1. Solicit Volunteers 
2. Purchase Officer 

Equipment 
3. Upgrade Bicycle 

Equipment 

yes Sgt. Martin 
Lt. Bos 

Q1: Sergeants soliciting interest from officers for coordinator.   
Q2: Officer Fiksdal identified as potential new coordinator.  

Evidence Room Purge, 
Inventory & 
Reorganization 

1. Identify timeline 
2. Determine weekly 

schedule 
3. Purge, Inventory 
4. Reorganize and 

reposition items 

Ongoing Holly 
Lt. Bos 
Chief 

Q1: Meeting scheduled for transition from Chief to Lt.   
Q2: Transition to be completed from Chief to Lt. prior to purge.   

Evidence Room Security 
Update 

1. Identify weak links in 
chain of evidence 
physical security 

2. Identify necessary 
equip/packaging 
materials 

3. Prepare list of priorities 
4. Purchase and upgrade 

yes Lt. Bos 
Holly 

Q1: On hold for above process.  
Q2: Training completed. Cost of new equipment and supplies being generated.  

Policy Manual Update and 
Revision 

1. Lexipol contact and 
contract 

2. Meet with rep. for new 
version 

3. Proofread and edit 
4. Push out new version 

yes Lt. Bos 
Chief 

Q1: Contract approved and signed. Met with rep telephonically, 1st introductory 
meeting completed. 
Q2: Lexipol rep. identified. Preliminary discussions on transition completed.  

Records Case File Purge 
Ongoing annual effort 

1. Identify records eligible 
for destruction per 
retention schedule 

2. Destroy and document 

Ongoing Holly 
Dawn 
Sharon 

Q1: On hold due to work load and Longarm cutover. 
Q2: Remains on hold. 

Lynden Watch Program 
(Lower Crime Rate) 

1. Establish city “beat” map 
2. Generate protocols 
3. Confirm volunteer list 
4. Meet with volunteers 
5. Meet with Chamber and 

Bus’s 
6. Launch program 

Ongoing Lt. Bos 
Chief 

Q1: Map and rough draft of flyer completed. Initial public meeting held.   
Q2: Program role out continues with additional meetings scheduled. Policy and 
procedures pending. $10,000 proposed for inclusion in 2020 budget. 

46



City of Lynden Leadership Team – 2019 Work Plan 
Department initiatives Strategies  Lead Updates & Modifications 

(Department activities to 
support City goals and 

objectives) 

(How to do it) Done in 
2019 

(Who is 
responsible) 

 

 

Page 24 of 32 
C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\bbc84795-b63d-4922-b12a-c8355da98816\ITEM-Attachment-001-058ea795c2e24637b29c5e0e151baae9.docx 
 January 2020 

Longarm Transition  1. Work with CompuWork 
for data migration. 

2. Test Longarm Execution 
3. Training 
4. Go live date established 

yes Chief 
Holly 
Nic 

Q1: Cut over complete, ongoing training, smooth transition thus far. Implemented 
department wide. 
Q2: Additional training requested from BPD for more efficient use of system. 

Improve monthly stat 
report 
 
 

1. Input on data req’d by 
P.S. Committee 

2. Determine Longarm and 
CAD search criteria 

3. Training as required 
4. Formatting ideas w/fire 
5. Improvement on final 

product  

yes Chief  
Lt. Bos 
Holly 

Q1: Obtain data from CAD, time of day, day of week. Working on graphs and 
consistent formatting with FD. Checking with BPD and Longarm reports/types of 
crime. 
Q2: Research mapping availability, awaiting additional specific requests from PS 
Committee. 

Fill officer position (reduce 
OT) 

1. Establish timeline 
2. Open for applications 
3. Oral interviews 
4. Civil Service certify list 
5. Conditional offer 
6. Background completed 
7. Hiring decision 
8. Mayoral approval 

yes Lt. Bos 
Holly  
Chief 

Q1:  Testing completed, list certified, candidate selected, background in progress. 
Q2: This section of the work plan completed and can be deleted at Q3 following 
Council report given on July 15th. Following field training, this officer will fill in 
behind officer who has been deployed to the southern border by the military.    

Retrofit Locker room 
benches with Trex. or 
equiv. material 

1. Determine material cost 
2. Communicate with P.W. 
3. Request Work order 
4. Finalize work 

yes Lt. Bos 
Sgts. 

Q1: Researched material and cost estimated at $600.    
Q2: pending approval and go-ahead by new interim chief.  

End - Police Department 
  

47



City of Lynden Leadership Team – 2019 Work Plan 
Department initiatives Strategies  Lead Updates & Modifications 

(Department activities to 
support City goals and 

objectives) 

(How to do it) Done in 
2019 

(Who is 
responsible) 

 

 

Page 25 of 32 
C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\bbc84795-b63d-4922-b12a-c8355da98816\ITEM-Attachment-001-058ea795c2e24637b29c5e0e151baae9.docx 
 January 2020 

 Public Works Department 

Advance Pepin Creek 
Riparian Corridor Project 
and Related Street 
Improvements 
 

Note: 2016 & 2018 
Legislative (Commerce) 
funding for this project 

1. Finalize DOE Downstream 
Grant/Loan Agreement  

2. Complete Preliminary 
Design Report VE 
Alternatives. (Preferred 
Alternative and Cost) 

3. Provide support to 
Financial Mitigation Study. 

4. Look for additional funding 
for construction 

5. Work with WSDOT/County 
on Badger Rd culvert 
replacement.  

6. Award and construct FHWA 
Intercept Ditch 

7. Complete design the Main 
Street Bridge/Culvert 

8. Acquire Downstream 
Property (Dickinson & 
Erdmann) 

1-6 Yes 

 

Steve B. Q1: Approved Scope & Budget for R&E to complete technical review of Value 
Engineering Alternatives 

Q1: Discussions with DOE use of Downstream Stabilization grant/loan for design 
and purchase of property for high flow bypass. 

Q1: Closed on purchase of Dickinson Property.   
Q1: Completed RCO Waiver of Retroactivity for Dickinson Property 
Q1: Completed Level 1 Environmental Review for Dickinson Property 

Q2: Erdmann Property:  completed property appraisal  
Q2: Erdmann Property:  completed Level 1 environmental evaluation. 
Q2: Some project design work placed on hold pending VE Scenario Evaluation 
Q2: R&E completes Draft Pepin Creek Relocation Scenario Evaluation Report and 

meets with staff June 21st.  Discussed pros and cons of alternatives and 
phasing potential for alternatives. 

Q2: Met with WSDOT (Damitio & Beirs) to discuss planned fish barrier removal 
projects. Dufner Ditch crossing at Guide Meridian (SR-539) highlighted. 

Q2: Reviewing options for $3M Commerce Loan 
Q2: Drafted Emergency Response Plan (ERP) This is a WSDOT/FHWA requirement. 
Q2: Conducted Open House at Fisher School on June 20th to review ERP (another 

FHWA-ER funding requirement) 

Q3: DOE Grant/Loan Agreement Fully Executed 7-18-19 for purchase of land and 
design of Pepin Creek Relocation ($2.4M loan/$0.5M grant) 

Q3: Opened Bids and have WSDOT/FHWA authorization to award Emergency 
Incept Ditch project to Premium Services for $179K  

Q3: Received Final R&E “Scenario Evaluation Report and presented to Public Works, 
Finance and Community Development Committees the decision to use SEPA 
process to evaluate alternatives. 

Q4: Intercept Ditch Substantially Complete 
Q4: Main Street Bridge Design On-Hold pending SEPA Alternative Selection (2020) 
Q4: Subarea Plan Adopted by City Council 2/9/19 
Q4: Met with WSDOT 10/1/19 on culvert replacement at Double Ditch. Project 

moved up to 2022 and combined with other replacements. 
 

48



City of Lynden Leadership Team – 2019 Work Plan 
Department initiatives Strategies  Lead Updates & Modifications 

(Department activities to 
support City goals and 

objectives) 

(How to do it) Done in 
2019 

(Who is 
responsible) 

 

 

Page 26 of 32 
C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\bbc84795-b63d-4922-b12a-c8355da98816\ITEM-Attachment-001-058ea795c2e24637b29c5e0e151baae9.docx 
 January 2020 

Riverview Rd Gap Project 

 
Note: 2015 Legislative 
funding for this project 

 

1. Ribbon-Cutting & Project 
Closeout. 

2. Coordination with adjacent 
property development. 

Yes Mark S. Q1: Ribbon-cutting held on March 21st 
Q1: Opening to traffic first week of April 

Q2: Opened to Traffic, with stop sign at 6th  
Q2: Wetland work (south side) on hold pending suitable weather for 

planting/restoration. 

Q3: Wetland planting begun on 9-30-19 
Q4: Awaiting WSDOT/FHWA determination related to wetland planting. 
 

Darigold Industrial 
Condensate Line Project 
 
Note: 2015 Legislative 
funding for this project 

1. Complete North South 
Segment and connect to 
Riverview (small works). 

2. Complete design and 
Construct Stormwater Line 
to Fishtrap (Track removal 
& new fire hydrants) 

3. Advertise and Award 
Stormwater Line. 

4. Coordinate construction 
schedule with adjacent 
businesses. 

5. Design and Permitting for 
Nooksack Outfall across 
from Water Intake 

6. Award Construction 
Contract for Outfall. 

Yes 

 

Mark S. Q1: Phase 1(Riverview) and 2 (North-South) in service.  
Q1: Met w/ Darigold and other businesses to review 90% design for stormwater 

relocation. 
Q1: Coordinated with Verizon on utility pole relocation. 
Q2: Depot Stormwater:  Finalize Form 05-05 for Dept. of Commerce and 

Archeological and Historic Preservation. 

Q3: Met with property owners along Hannigan Road for easements for ICP 
Q3: Bids Opened and Engineer recommending award to Faber Construction for 

$431,986 at October 7th City Council for Stormwater to Fishtrap. 
Q3: Submitting permit applications for River Outfall near east of Hannegan.   
Q3: Met with Whatcom Co to discuss permitting  
Q3: Communicating with DNR on Aquatic Land Lease. 

Q4: Faber is 50% complete with Stormwater Line Project on Depot Road 
Q4: Outfall Design Phase at 60% 
Q4: Army Corp of Engineers reviewing Nooksack Outfall Permit 
Q4: Whatcom Co reviewing Nooksack Outfall Permit 
Q4: Outfall SEPA Checklist has been submitted and we are responding to additional 

requests for information. 

49



City of Lynden Leadership Team – 2019 Work Plan 
Department initiatives Strategies  Lead Updates & Modifications 

(Department activities to 
support City goals and 

objectives) 

(How to do it) Done in 
2019 

(Who is 
responsible) 

 

 

Page 27 of 32 
C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\bbc84795-b63d-4922-b12a-c8355da98816\ITEM-Attachment-001-058ea795c2e24637b29c5e0e151baae9.docx 
 January 2020 

7th Street Reconstruction 
Project 
 
Note: TIB Funding for 
resurfacing. 
 

1. Complete Design 

2. Coordinate schedule with 
DBA/Chamber to minimize 
business impacts. 

3. Advertise and award 
construction contract. 

Delayed to 2020 

4. Complete construction.  

5. Ribbon-cutting.  

Yes Mark S. Q1: Coordination with DBA and adjacent businesses on street/parking layout and 7th 
Street Parking Lot 

Q1: Presented 7th Street preliminary Design to PW Committee  

Q2: Submitted “Authorization to Bid” Form to Transportation Improvement Board 
(TIB) to allow advertising for bids in mid-July 

Q3: Awarded construction contract to DeKoster Excavating at September 3 Council 
meeting for $1,722,451 (8 bidders).  (Engineer’s Estimate; $1.8M) 

Q3: Held Preconstruction Conference (work to be completed in 2020) 

Q4: Front to Grover section completed with base lift of asphalt and sidewalks 
before Lighted Christmas Parade. Project is XX% complete. 

Q4: Removed and disposed of abandoned fuel tanks under parking lot. 
 

17th Street Gap 
Elimination Project 

(North to Main St.) 

1. Complete Design & 
permitting. 

Delayed to 2020 

2. Advertise and Award 
Construction Contract 

3. Construct project. 

4. Ribbon-cutting 

 Mark S. Q1: Met w/ adjacent property owners (Cummins) to discuss alignment and 
coordination with future lot development 

Q1: R&E Scope and Budget under review. 

Q2: Authorize R&E to start design. 
Q2:  Worked with attorney to draft paperwork to allow moving dedicated ROW 8 

feet to the west at the request of the Timmerman/Cummins family. 

Q3: Council Approved ROW shift to west. 
Q3: Preliminary plans prepared by R&E and confirmed permitting requirements 

including water main extension and larger stormwater to mitigate flooding. 

Q4: SEPA Checklist and Biological Assessment provided to Planning for review. 
  

Foxtail Street Gap 
Elimination Project 
(Design) 
 

1. Complete Preliminary 
Design. 

2. Discussions with property 
owner 

 Mark S. Q1: No progress this period 

Q2: Executed scope and budget with R&E.  Preliminary design underway to provide 
budgetary estimate for 2020 budget discussions. 

Q3: On hold due to funding constraints 

Q4: Preliminary design and cost estimate developed.  Planned final design in 2020 
and 2021 construction.  

 

50



City of Lynden Leadership Team – 2019 Work Plan 
Department initiatives Strategies  Lead Updates & Modifications 

(Department activities to 
support City goals and 

objectives) 

(How to do it) Done in 
2019 

(Who is 
responsible) 

 

 

Page 28 of 32 
C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\bbc84795-b63d-4922-b12a-c8355da98816\ITEM-Attachment-001-058ea795c2e24637b29c5e0e151baae9.docx 
 January 2020 

W. Main Street 
Improvements 

1. Complete Design (STP-R 
funded) 

2. Initiate required property 
acquisition. 

3. Apply for STP-R 
Construction funding for 
roundabout 

Yes Mark S. Q1: No progress this period 
Q1: Received STP-R Application from WCOG 

Q2: Application submitted with presentation to WCOG on May 23 
Q2: WCOG Transportation Technical Advisory Group (TTAC) votes and recommends 

$800K of FY 2022 Surface Transportation Grant Funding on June 27th.  Board 
approval expected at July 10th Transportation Policy Board Meeting. 

Q3: Policy Board approved for 2022 STP-R funding.  Putting further design on hold 
till 2020 

Q4: On Hold 

W. Front Street 
Revitalization (Design) 
 

1. Apply for EDI Grant/Loan 
Funding. 

2. Complete Preliminary 
Design.(Port Grant funded) 

3. Coordinate with adjacent 
planned industrial 
development. 

 Mark S. Q1: Received approval of Federal Classification – Minor Arterial 
Q1: Selected preferred design from alternatives provided by engineer. 
Q1: Met with Developer on south side Front St. to coordinate project with future 

development.  Identified ROW dedication requirements. 
Q1: Downloaded County EDI Application 

Q2: Sent letter to other property owners on south side and received signed 
response agreeing to donate ROW. 

Q2: Staff drafting Whatcom County EDI Loan Grant Application 

Q3: Met with major property owners to discuss ROW and EDI application. 
Q3: Completed 30% design and finalized ROW configuration. Prepared scope and 

budget for full design. 

Q4: County EDI Board recommends approval to County Council (8-2 vote) 
Q4: 30% Design complete. County Council vote on EDI January 28, 2020. 
Q4: Development Agreement and ROW variance approved by City Council  
Q4: Planned 2020 Construction. 
 

51



City of Lynden Leadership Team – 2019 Work Plan 
Department initiatives Strategies  Lead Updates & Modifications 

(Department activities to 
support City goals and 

objectives) 

(How to do it) Done in 
2019 

(Who is 
responsible) 

 

 

Page 29 of 32 
C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\bbc84795-b63d-4922-b12a-c8355da98816\ITEM-Attachment-001-058ea795c2e24637b29c5e0e151baae9.docx 
 January 2020 

Major Park and Trail 
Improvements  

1. Closeout – Fisher Trail 
2. Complete School and 

Vandergriend property 
acquisition for Depot to 8th 
Street Trail 

3. Advance design of Depot to 
8th Street Trail  

4. Complete remediation of 
old water tank site on 
School District Property 
(small works) 

5. Pursue construction 
funding in 2019 Legislative 
session for Depot to 8th 
Street Trail  

6. Reimburse Dickinson Park 
with DOE grant/loan funds 

7. ADDED: Glenning Street 
Playground Acquisition. 

8. ADDED: Berthusen 
Restroom Replacement 

Yes Mark S. Q1: Fisher Trail is closed out. 
Q1: Closed on School Property Swap – March 29 
Q1: Submitted Capital Request paperwork 
Q1: 90% Design of old tank site remediation completed. 

Q2: Tank Site Remediation. Advertised for small works bids but no bids received on 
6/18/19. Modified bid package per conversations with bidders (too busy) and 
re-advertised with bid opening scheduled for July 8th. 

Q2: Depot to 8th Street Trail. No legislative funding received in 2019 session 
Q2: Dickinson Park. Purchase of property included in scope of grant loan 

agreement and eligible for $500k grant. 
Q2: Level 1 Environmental Assessment completed for Dickinson Park. 
Q2: Level 1 Environmental Assessment completed for Glenning Playgound. 
Q3: Tank Site Remediation awarded to Strider Construction for $242K. Sept. 5th. 

Q4: Tank Site Remediation physically complete on November 14th. 
Q4: Parks and Trails Bond issue passed in November election. 
Q4: R&E working on site design and permitting of prefab restroom at Berthusen 

park 

Resurface YMCA Pool 1. Advertise and Award Small 
Works Repair Contract 

2. Complete Pool Repair 

Yes April- 
May 2019 

Steve B. Q1: Completed design package with help of ECNW Pool Engineer. 
Q1: Request for Proposals Issued to Small Works Roster. 

Q2: Opened proposals and City Council awarded contract to Anderson Poolworks 
for $202,325 including piping repairs. 

Q2: Pool emptied on June 28 contractor to begin work July 8th to be completed by 
August 2nd. 

Q3: Pool Completed and reopened to patrons on     Final project cost was $205,    . 
Ribbon-cutting held on September 19th   COMPLETE 

Q4: City assisting YMCA with install of  

52



City of Lynden Leadership Team – 2019 Work Plan 
Department initiatives Strategies  Lead Updates & Modifications 

(Department activities to 
support City goals and 

objectives) 

(How to do it) Done in 
2019 

(Who is 
responsible) 

 

 

Page 30 of 32 
C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\bbc84795-b63d-4922-b12a-c8355da98816\ITEM-Attachment-001-058ea795c2e24637b29c5e0e151baae9.docx 
 January 2020 

Demolish Old Water 
Treatment Plant and 
Prepare for Future Use 

1. Finish Bid Documents for 
Demolition Contract 

2. Sell salvageable equipment 
3. Award Demolition Contract 
4. Complete Demolition  

1-4 Yes Mark S. Q1: Conducted “Garage Sale” for surplus equipment on March 30. 
Q1: Design for Demolition 90% complete. 

Q2: Bid awarded recommended to Tiger Construction at July 1 City Council 
Meeting. 

Q3: Contractor remove tank, asbestos, and all walls.  Contract progressing well with 
project at 80% complete 

Q4: WTP Demolition project complete. 
 

WWTP Outfall and Other 
WWTP and Wastewater 
Upgrades  

1. Complete DOE Loan 
Agreement for WWTP 
Outfall 

2. Advertise and Award 
Contract (Outfall) 

3. Complete construction 
(WWTP Outfall) 

4. Pump Station #3 Generator 
installed. 

5. Overhaul Pump Station #12 
6. Replace one Oxidation 

Ditch rotor and cover 
7. Cured in Place Sewer Main 

repair BC to 10th Street. 

Yes Steve B. 

 

Mark S. 

Tami A Mike K. 

 

Tami A. Mike K. 

 

Q1: Permits have been obtained for PS #3 generator installation (incl. Shoreline 
Permit) 

Q1: Oxidation ditch rotor and cover are ordered and onsite. 
Q1: Resolution 996 adopted at March 18 City Council authorizing use of DOE Loan 

for WWTP Outfall 

Q2: DOE Loan Agreement for WWTP Outfall fully executed April 3, 2019 
Q2: Pump station #3 Generator installation complete. Fence and landscaping 

remaining. 
Q2: Pump Station #12 put out to bid on small works roster. 
Q2: Pumps, hatches and accessories ordered for PS #12 upgrade. 
Q2: Schedule Oxidation ditch rotor/ cover replacement (in-house) for July. 
Q2: WWTP Outfall. Contract awarded to Strider Construction for $1,013,844.90 by 

City Council on May 6th. Preconstruction meeting held on May 31st. 

Q3: All “in-water” work complete. New manhole installed. Project complete except 
for mitigation plantings. 

Q3: Pump Station #12 Contract award to WRS for $75,000.  
Q3: Pump Station #12 is 90% complete by WRS. Check valves needed to be replaced 

and new panel from QCC. 

Q4: Fence and landscaping around PS#3 generator complete  
Q4: WWTP Outfall and mitigation plantings substantially complete. 
Q4: Pump Station #12 complete. 
Q4: Oxidation Ditch rotor installed. 
Q4: Cured in place pipe to be combined with COW water CIP in 2020 for economy 

53



City of Lynden Leadership Team – 2019 Work Plan 
Department initiatives Strategies  Lead Updates & Modifications 

(Department activities to 
support City goals and 

objectives) 

(How to do it) Done in 
2019 

(Who is 
responsible) 

 

 

Page 31 of 32 
C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\bbc84795-b63d-4922-b12a-c8355da98816\ITEM-Attachment-001-058ea795c2e24637b29c5e0e151baae9.docx 
 January 2020 

Guide Meridian Sewer Lift 
Station 

1. Identify best site. 
2. Compete Design. 

3. Work with adjacent 
developable properties. 

Yes Steve B./Tami A 
Mike K. 

Q1: Scope and Budget by BHC under review 

Q2: BHC Professional Service Contract executed.  
Q2: Obtained property owner (Fishtrap LLC) permission for property access.  
Q2: Survey, geotech, archeological investigation in progress. 

Q3: Preliminary Design Report submitted for review  
Q3: Archeological Report submitted for review. 

Q4: Amended scope to provide survey for west sewer trunk 
Q4: Requested scope and budget from Katy Isaksen for Financial Analysis based on 

attorney recommended legal options. 

Pursue Additional Water 
Rights (Qa) & “Wet Water” 

1. Works with City Attorney 
on Water Rights Issues 
including final Water 
System Plan. 

2. Retain Technical Team to 
explore potential off-
channel storage and other 
“wet water” alternatives. 

3. Schedule Quarterly DOE 
Meetings 

Yes Steve B. Q1: Entered Agreement with consultant team (AES/R&E) to study three off-channel 
storage locations and other water rights. 

Q1: Conducted 1st Quarter DOE/DOH Meeting 

Q2: Hosted 2nd Quarter DOE/DOH Meeting 5/20 at Lynden. Provided tour of Pepin 
Q2:  Met with AES/R&E team to discuss upstream AG water rights on 6/5. 
Q2: Continue to follow WRIA process related to water rights to identify possible 

benefits to Lynden and other small cities. 

Q3: Met with AES to discuss potential sites for off-channel storage/infiltration 

Q4: Met with Lummi Nation staff to discuss Managed Aquifer Storage (MAR) 
Q4: Hosted 4th Quarter DOE/DOH Meeting including MAR discussion 
Q4: Preparing to submit Streamflow Restoration Grant application in Mar 2020   

Improve the Water System 
Customer Reliability 

1. Adjust Water Booster Pump 
Station (BPS) controls for 
improved and consistent 
water pressure 

Yes Tami A. Mike K. 
 
 

Q1: Finalized QCC scope and budget for new controls for booster pump stations. 
Q2: Completed update to PLC and controls for both pump stations (3Mg and 6Mg). 

Waiting for drawings and control strategy documentation. 

Q3: Control Strategy Completed 
Q3: Conducted Test Running both Pump Stations during Peak Demand 
Q3: Recalibrated BPS Flow Meters – Improving Accuracy to within 1% 

Q4: No additional work during this period 

54



City of Lynden Leadership Team – 2019 Work Plan 
Department initiatives Strategies  Lead Updates & Modifications 

(Department activities to 
support City goals and 

objectives) 

(How to do it) Done in 
2019 

(Who is 
responsible) 

 

 

Page 32 of 32 
C:\Users\Public\Documents\MeetingMunicodeDocumentProcessing\bbc84795-b63d-4922-b12a-c8355da98816\ITEM-Attachment-001-058ea795c2e24637b29c5e0e151baae9.docx 
 January 2020 

Succession Planning 
 
 

1. Recruit new Plant’s 
Superintendent 

2. Fill vacant Systems 
Maintenance Worker 
position 

3. Review and update plant 
desk guides and procedures 

 
Yes 

 
Steve B. (w/ HR) 

Q1: Advertisement out for Plant Superintendents 
Q1: Advertisement out for Maintenance Worker 

Q2: Hired Mike Kim as Plant Superintendent.  Began work 6/3 
Q2: Hired Jon VanMersbergen, Maintenance Worker.  Began work 6/3 

Q3: Laura announce retirement at end of the year. Advertised for new Office 
Manager 

Q4 Heather Sytsma promoted to Office Manager.   
Q4: Advertised for new Senior Administrative Assistant. Hired Miriam Kentner. 
Q4: Tom Yonkman (Maint. Electrician in Operations) resigns. 
Q4: Recruited for replacement Electrician.  Promoted Mike Brown from System 
Q4: Laura Burford Retires 

Complete Comprehensive 
Planning for Utilities  

1. Respond to agency 
comments on Water 
System Plan Update 

2. Adopt Water System Plan 
Update. 

3. Complete Stormwater Plan 
for City Adoption. 

Yes Steve B. Q1: Provided updated data (2015-2019) to RH2. 
Q1: Signed amendment with RH2 to update plan thru 2018 data and respond to 

agency comments. 
Q1: Reviewing Final Draft Stormwater Comp Plan 

Q2: Updates to Water System Plan completed including financial through 2018. 

Q3: Council approved changes to Water Service Area and submitted to Whatcom 
County 

Q4: Water System plan resubmitted to State Department of Health for Final Review 
Q4: Stormwater Plan reviewed by Public Works Committee 
Q4: City Council sets January Public Hearing for Stormwater Comprehensive Plan. 

Other Major Street 
Improvement Design 
Projects 

1. Update design for Bradley 
and Line Road – focus on 
pedestrian access. 

2. Renew discussions with 
private utilities along 
Bradley Road. 

3. Design Judson Street LID 
Project. 

Yes Mark S. Q1: No Action this Period. 

Q2: DOE Grant Agreement signed for Judson Street Low Impact Development 
Design.   

Q3: Complete SEPA for Line Rd Pedestrian Safety Small Works Project – Widened 
shoulder.  Design in Progress 

Q3: Included Bradley and Line Road in WCOG Legislative Request 

Q4: Awarded Small Works Construction of Line Rd Pedestrian Improvement to Tiger 
Construction. 

Q4: Shoulder paved on Line Rd. awaiting weather to install extruded curb and 
striping.  Construction is about 75% complete. 

 

End - Public Works Department 

55



 

 

   EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

 

Meeting Date: January 21, 2020 
Name of Agenda Item: Public Works Committee Meeting Minutes January 8, 2020 
Section of Agenda: Approval of Minutes 
Department: Public Works 
Council Committee Review: Legal Review: 

☐ Community Development          ☐ Public Safety ☐ Yes - Reviewed 

☐ Finance ☒ Public Works ☐ No - Not Reviewed 

☐ Parks    ☐ Other: _____________ ☒ Review Not Required 
Attachments: 

January 8, 2020 Draft Public Works Committee Meeting Minutes 

Summary Statement: 

Draft minutes for the January 8, 2020 Public Works Committee meeting. 

Recommended Action: 

For Review 

 

CITY OF LYNDEN 

56



 

 
  
 Public Works Committee Minutes  Page 1 of 4 

January 8, 2020 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
360-354-3446 

CITY OF LYNDEN 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MINUTES 
 

4:15 PM January 8, 2020 
 

City Hall 2nd Floor Large Conference Room 
 

1. ROLL CALL  
 

Members Present: Mayor Scott Korthuis; Councilors Gary Bode, Ron De Valois and Jerry 
Kuiken 

 
Staff Present: City Administrator Mike Martin; Public Works Director Steve Banham; 

Fire Chief Mark Billmire; Programs Manager Mark Sandal; 
Administrative Office Manager Heather Sytsma; and Sr. Admin. 
Assistant Miriam Kentner 

 
Public Present: Gary Vis, Norm Sanga 
  

2. ACTION ITEMS 
 

A. Approve Minutes from December 4, 2019 
Bode motioned to approve the minutes, and De Valois seconded the motion. 
 
Action 
The minutes from December 4, 2019 were approved. 

 
B. West Front Street EDI Presentation to County Council (presentation included in 

packet)  
Korthuis advised the Committee the date for the final West Front Street EDI presentation 
to the Whatcom County Council will be January 28th, 2020.  
 
Banham explained that EDI funding request is $1 million grant / $2 million loan, and that 
staff plans to use Traffic Impact Fees to fund this project should funds be awarded.    
 
Banham discussed with the Committee the right-of-way (ROW) needed for this project.  
As an arterial street the City ROW standard is 80 feet. The existing ROW is only 40 feet 
which will require an additional 20 feet on each side. For the 4 existing homes, Banham 
recommended pursuing ten feet of ROW at this time to allow construction of the road 
until they are redeveloped sometime in the future. This might eliminate the sidewalk. The 
Committee discussed the locations of homes and sidewalk and ROW acquisition and the 
current arterial standard of 80 feet. 
 
Action 
The Public Works Committee agreed that the City standard 80-foot ROW should 
be used in seeking the additional ROW (20 feet) from undeveloped properties, but 
agreed that sidewalk could be placed on one side only (south side) with an 

57



 

 
   
 Public Works Committee Minutes Page 2 of 4 

January 8, 2020 

additional 10-foot ROW acquired from existing home owners on the north side 
with the understanding that the additional ROW would be required with any 
redevelopment. 

 
C. Fire Station Expansion – Authorize Design Contract RFP 

Fire Chief Mark Billmire discussed the design for the proposed fire station expansion, 
noting that the last work on the station was in 2010 and the station was not designed to 
be occupied 24 hours per day with resident firefighters. Korthuis expressed support of 
the renovation and stated his concern on how to obtain funding for the construction. 
Martin stated he will continue to work with finance staff to address a source of 
construction funds. As Public Works will provide project management this request has 
also come to this committee. 
  
Action 
The Public Works Committee concurred to recommend proceeding with the 
requests for qualifications of Engineer/Architect Firms to design the Fire Station 
expansion in 2020.   

 
3. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

A. Traffic Impact Fees (TIF) – West Lynden 50% discount and Impact Fee Streets 
Banham discussed with the Committee the challenges of funding impact fee funded 
streets. The assumption in the comprehensive plan is that City collected impact funds 
would be matched by 80% State and Federal grant funding, since these are functionally 
classified street and eligible for those funds. The City is developing a backlog of streets 
that need improvements that anticipated impact fees as a source. The west Lynden area 
is currently benefiting from a 50% reduced traffic impact fee rate to encourage industrial 
development and jobs. Banham suggested future review of traffic impact fee amounts 
and the 50% reduction.  
 
Korthuis suggested possibly phasing the 50% reduction out, for example, charging 75% 
of the full amount for a period of time, and then returning to 100% by 2025.  
  
The Committee requested that Banham bring a fee comparison chart to a future Public 
Works Committee meeting.  

 
B. Benson Road (Roundabout) and Double Ditch Culvert – Possible Road Closure 

Banham stated that Washington State is going to be replacing the culvert on Double 
Ditch and has asked if that road needs to be kept open to the south as it would be easier 
to install a single box culvert if it were closed. This road is in Lynden’s urban growth area 
currently so the County would need to be a party to this discussion. Banham stated that 
if Double Ditch Road were to be closed it would be critical to construct the “Pepin 
Parkway” that was discussed recently at City Council and to install a roundabout at 
Benson/Badger intersection. Banham has expressed that the City does not want Double 
Ditch Road closed but does want to discuss the roundabout at Benson Road. After 
discussion Banham agreed to draft a letter to WSDOT regarding the downstream 
impacts of the culvert and requesting a roundabout at Benson Road but not closing 
Double Ditch road. The Committee strongly concurred they would not support a closure 
at this time. 
 
 

58



 

 
   
 Public Works Committee Minutes Page 3 of 4 

January 8, 2020 

C. Homestead – Maintenance and Improvements Responsibilities  
Banham presented to the Committee a letter that was recently received by the residents 
of the Homestead Development Community. The Committee discussed the concern 
expressed by residents in relation to the increase in maintenance fees. Banham asked 
the Committee to consider what is the public interest responsibility of the City for 
roadside maintenance (tree trimming, street lighting and sidewalk repair) on public 
streets. Banham stated that many, including Homestead Boulevard, are public streets. 
The Committee reviewed the map showing private versus public streets. The City has 
recently cooperated and assisted the development with sidewalk repairs and it is 
currently trimming the trees on a reimbursable basis. 

 
D. Projects: 

1. Industrial Condensate- Riverview to Outfall - Draft Easements 
Banham and Sandal are working with Whatcom County to obtain necessary permits. 

2. Industrial Condensate - Darigold Stormwater to Fishtrap Creek  
The Committee discussed Phase 3 currently being constructed by Faber 
Construction and discussed construction progress. Sandal noted that this portion of 
the project is located in an older part of town sometimes revealing previously 
unknown pipes. 

3. 7th Street Revitalization Project 
Sandal stated that this project is on hold due to weather. DeKoster Excavating 
should resume work in February.  

4. 17th Street Design 
Banham stated that project is delayed due to a the watermain extension which goes 
further to the south into critical areas that will require shoreline approval from the 
Planning Commission. Shoreline permits have been submitted and further 
information is being supplied as has been requested. 

5. Judson Street Low Impact Development 
Banham noted that staff is meeting with Reichhardt & Ebe Engineering tomorrow to 
work on the scope. The agreement will be presented at the February Public Works 
Committee meeting. A grant application to the Department of Ecology is proposed to 
be submitted in 2021 for construction. 

6. Northwest Washington Fair Stormwater Improvements 
Banham is scheduled to meet with the selected consultant to review the planned 
scope and budget on January 9, 2020. The goal is to finalize the agreement before 
the end of the month so that design can begin. Staff plans to submit a construction 
grant application in September 2020.   

7. Trails – Washington Recreation and Conservation Office (RCO) – Visiting Site 
Prior to Next Funding Cycle; Application Due 2020; Contract Execution 2022 
Sandal is meeting with the RCO representative for our area on February 3 to visit 
parks and trail sites and to strategize a successful funding application in 2020.  

8. Line Road Pedestrian Improvements 
Construction is on hold due to weather. The Committee discussed the current 
progress of the project before the weather delay. De Valois stated progress is 
noticeable and handrails are up. Banham has also submitted a request to Puget 
Sound Energy for additional street lighting south of Foxtail on the existing poles. The 
need for a wider shoulder/sidewalk on the south side of Bradley Road from Vinup to 
Line Road was also discussed.  Sandal noted that there is insufficient right-of-way.  

59



 

 
   
 Public Works Committee Minutes Page 4 of 4 

January 8, 2020 

9. Advertising for General Professional Services  
Banham explained that it has been a number of years since staff solicited for 
General Professional Services, and the plan is to accomplish this in 2020. The 
Committee concurred.  

 
4. ITEMS ADDED: 

 
A. Front Street Mobile Home Park – Norm Sangha 

Banham introduced Mr. Norm Sangha, owner of the mobile home park on West Front 
Street. Sangha asked the Committee to review the current utility billing of residential 
sewer rates that will be charged for his 32-unit mobile home park now that it is 
connected to City sewer under the City’s septic to sewer conversion program.   
 
The Committee discussed the appropriate monthly rate for this service. Banham stated 
rates have been adopted in the budget for residential or commercial classification. Bode 
suggested making a new bracket for this less common property at a rate lower than but 
tied to multifamily rates. De Valois agreed that a new category should be discussed with 
a rate option that would be more suitable for a mobile home park. 
 
Banham stated he will discuss this with staff to determine the appropriate revised rate 
structure exclusively for mobile homes.  
  

B. Riverview Road Intersection  
Kuiken asked whether the four-way stop at the intersection of Riverview Road and South 
6th Street is necessary. Banham stated that traffic counts have been requested and are 
planned to determine vehicle use and speeds. Bode stated the signs were put int to help 
slow traffic due to the residential neighborhood and play area west of 6th. Korthuis noted 
that once staff has that baseline information, the east-west stop signs can be removed 
and the traffic counts re-done, making changes to the intersection as needed if speeding 
is a problem.  

 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:42 p.m. 
 

60



 

 

   EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

 

Meeting Date: January 21, 2020 

Name of Agenda Item: Calendar 

Section of Agenda: Other Business 

Department: Administration 

Council Committee Review: Legal Review: 

☐ Community Development          ☐ Public Safety ☐ Yes - Reviewed 

☐ Finance ☐ Public Works ☐ No - Not Reviewed 

☐ Parks    ☐ Other: N/A ☒ Review Not Required 

Attachments: 

Outlook Calendar 

Summary Statement: 

See next page. 

Recommended Action: 

None 

 

CITY OF LYNDEN 

61



1 1/13/2020 3:49 PMPam Brown

 January 20, 2020
 Monday
All Day Admin Doors

 

All Day Private Appointment

All Day Martin Luther King Day -- United States

 January 21, 2020
 Tuesday
All Day Admin Doors

Please See Above

All Day Private Appointment
Please See Above

All Day Sharon Back?
 

9:00 AM - 11:00 AM Small Cities Meeting -- City Hall 1st Floor Large Conference Room
 

3:00 PM - 4:00 PM Finance Committee Meeting -- City Hall 1st Floor Large Conference Room
Visit WWW.LYNDENWA.ORG to view the agenda

 

4:00 PM - 5:00 PM Parks Committee Meeting -- City Hall 1st Floor Large Conference Room
Meeting on Tuesday because of Holiday

7:00 PM - 9:00 PM Copy: Council Meeting -- Annex Council Chamber
 

 January 22, 2020
 Wednesday
All Day Admin Doors

Please See Above

All Day Private Appointment
Please See Above

All Day Payday!!!
 

2:00 PM - 12:00 AM Training- Records Mgmt -- Lynnwood
 

62



2 1/13/2020 3:49 PMPam Brown

 January 22, 2020 Continued
 Wednesday
9:00 AM - 5:00 PM Court -- Annex Council Chamber; Annex East Training Room; Annex North East Conference Room; Annex 

South East Conference Room
 

9:00 AM - 5:00 PM Court -- Annex Council Chamber; Annex East Training Room; Annex North East Conference Room; Annex 
South East Conference Room
 

9:00 AM - 10:00 AM Check-In Mark/Mike -- Mike's Office
 

 January 23, 2020
 Thursday
All Day Admin Doors

Please See Above

All Day Private Appointment
Please See Above

All Day Training- Records Mgmt -- Lynnwood
Please See Above

 January 24, 2020
 Friday
All Day Admin Doors

Please See Above

12:00 AM - 12:00 AM Private Appointment
Please See Above

12:00 AM - 5:00 PM Training- Records Mgmt -- Lynnwood
Please See Above

10:00 AM - 11:00 AM Check-In Steve/Mike -- Mike's Office
 

11:00 AM - 12:00 PM Check0In Heidi/Mike -- Mike's Office
 

 January 25, 2020
 Saturday
All Day Admin Doors

Please See Above

63



3 1/13/2020 3:49 PMPam Brown

 January 26, 2020
 Sunday
All Day Admin Doors

Please See Above

 January 27, 2020
 Monday
All Day Admin Doors

Please See Above

9:00 AM - 10:00 AM Copy: Mike/Vern 1/1 -- Mike's Office
 

 January 28, 2020
 Tuesday
All Day Admin Doors

Please See Above

8:30 AM - 9:30 AM Copy: Leadership Team Meeting -- City Hall 1st Floor Large Conference Room
 

 January 29, 2020
 Wednesday
All Day Admin Doors

Please See Above

1:00 PM - 5:00 PM Private Appointment

 January 30, 2020
 Thursday
All Day Admin Doors

Please See Above

 January 31, 2020
 Friday
All Day Admin Doors

Please See Above

10:00 AM - 5:00 PM Private Appointment

 February 1, 2020
 Saturday
All Day Admin Doors

Please See Above

64



4 1/13/2020 3:49 PMPam Brown

 February 2, 2020
 Sunday
All Day Admin Doors

Please See Above

All Day Community Group
 

All Day Groundhog Day -- United States

 February 3, 2020
 Monday
All Day Admin Doors

Please See Above

All Day Interlocal Agreement WC and Small Cities RE: Administering Funds Generated for Affordable Housing SHB
1406
 

8:00 AM - 8:30 AM PRR-Retirement (Finance) Due 2-10-2020
 

7:00 PM - 9:00 PM Council Meeting -- Annex Council Chamber
 

65


	Top
	1. Oath of Office for Police Chief Steve Taylor
	ES-Oath of Office for Police Chief Steve Taylor
	Oath of Office - Chief Taylor

	2. Draft City Council Minutes-January 6, 2020
	ES-Draft Council Minutes
	20200106-regular-meeting-DRAFT

	3. DRAFT City Council Minutes Special PS-January 9, 2020
	ES-Special City Council Meeting Minutes January 9, 2020-Draft
	Special City Council Meeting Minutes January 9, 2020-Draft

	4. Payroll & Claims
	Approval of Payroll and Claims 1-21-20

	5. Amending Addendum K of the 2020 Budget
	ES - Amending Addendum K of the 2020 Budget_Jan 21

	6. Request to Cancel Warrant #74403
	ES - Resolution No. 1017 Request to Cancel Warrant #74403
	Resolution 1017 - Request to Cancel Warrant 74403
	Cancel Warrant #74403 memo

	7. Setting the Final Property Tax for 2020
	ES - ORD NO. 1602 - Setting the Final Property Tax 2020 _Jan 21
	ORD NO. 1602  -  Setting the Final Property Tax  for 2020

	8. Quarterly Work Plan Update
	ES-Work Plan
	2019-Workplan-Q4

	9. Draft Public Works Committee Minutes January 8, 2020
	ES-Minutes January 8
	January 8 2020

	10. Outlook Calendar
	ES-Calendar
	Calendar Details Style

	Bottom

